UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA

ATLANTA DIVISION

WILLIAM M. WINDSOR,
)


)

Plaintiffs,
)


)
CIVIL ACTION NO: 

v.
)


)
_______________________

United States District Court for the 
)

Northern District of Georgia, 
)

Judge William S. Duffey, Jr., 
)

Judge Orinda D. Evans,
)

Judge Stanley Birch, 
)

United States Court of Appeals for
)

the Eleventh Circuit, United States of
)

America, and 
)

Does 1 TO 1000,
) 


)

Defendants.
)


)
VERIFIED COMPLAINT
William M. Windsor (“Windsor or “Plaintiff”) hereby files this VERIFIED COMPLAINT.  Plaintiff shows the Court as follows:

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT
1. The Clerk of the Court of the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia improperly issued a Writ of Execution on the assets of Windsor and his wife, Barbara G. Windsor (“Barbara”)n (jointly “The Windsors”).  Maid of the Mist Corporation (“MOTM”) and Maid of the Mist Steamboat Company, Ltd. (“Steamboat”) illegally filed liens on the assets of The Windsors.  The United States Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit has refused to allow Windsor to file any motions with the Eleventh Circuit to address this wrongdoing.  Federal Judge Orinda D. Evans (“Judge Evans”) and Federal Judge William S. Duffey (“Judge Duffey”) deny Windsor the ability to file anything in their courts to address this wrongdoing.
2. Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, Judge Stanley Birch (“Judge Birch”), and other judges of the Eleventh Circuit are corrupt.
3. The actions of Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, Judge Birch, and the judges of the Eleventh Circuit bring shame on the legal system and the federal judiciary.  These officers of the court have conspired to perpetrate fraud directed squarely at the integrity of the decision-making of the federal courts.  Intentional misstatements of facts or omissions of material facts with knowledge of falsity, or in reckless disregard for whether statements were true or false have been made by Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, and Judge Birch.
4. This civil action is about the most fundamental legal issues that exist: justice; honesty; fair play; equal protection; due process; Constitutional protections; the right to a fair trial before an impartial judge; the requirement that witnesses, attorneys, and judges tell the truth; the requirement that witnesses, attorneys, and judges do not violate the laws of the state and the country, abuse litigants, and commit fraud upon the courts.

5. This civil action is about these dishonest federal judges, a judicial system that tramples the Constitutional rights of U.S. citizens, and the failure of the various individuals and authorities established to protect citizens to do anything about this.
6. The United States government has committed fraud.  The government told Windsor that he would be protected by the Constitution.  The government knew this was not true.  Windsor believed the government.  Windsor was not protected, and he was damaged.

7. The serious issues presented herein came to the attention of Windsor through his experience in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia (“N.D.Ga.”) and the United States Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit (“Eleventh Circuit”).  A massive fraud upon the courts has been perpetrated by Maid of the Mist Corporation (“MOTM”), Maid of the Mist Steamboat Company Ltd (“Steamboat”), Maid’s Attorneys – Hawkins & Parnell (“H&P”) and Mr. Carl Hugo Anderson, (“Mr. Anderson”), Judge Orinda D. Evans (“Judge Evans”), and Judge William S. Duffey (“Judge Duffey”).

8. District Court judges in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia (“N.D.Ga.”) ignore the facts; invent their own facts; ignore the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure (“FRCP”), the Local Rules, and the Federal Rules of Evidence (“FRE”); ignore the law; ignore applicable case law; cite erroneous case law; commit perjury by making statements that they know to be false in their orders; violate parties’ rights in any way they can; commit obstruction of justice; and trample the Constitutional rights of litigants without a thought.  They manipulate the judicial system to deprive parties such as Windsor of their legal and Constitutional rights.  
9. Appellate Court judges in the United States Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit (“Eleventh Circuit”) ignore the facts; ignore the points of error of appellants; ignore the law; ignore applicable case law; cite erroneous case law; issue short, inadequate decisions; do whatever it takes to support their friends at the District Courts; and trample the Constitutional rights of litigants.

10. The judicial system supports this dishonesty and illegality.  The “system” denies any form of valid recourse for an aggrieved citizen.  
11. Aggrieved citizens find it next to impossible to take legal action against judges.  Judges ignore perjury.  There is no law that permits an aggrieved citizen to sue over perjury.  The only recourse against a N.D.Ga. federal judge is to file a complaint with the Judicial Council of the Eleventh Circuit (“Judicial Council”).  The complaints must be no more than five pages.  The Judicial Council ignores valid complaints and claims there is no proof when there is plenty.  The aggrieved citizens have no recourse.  Since the Supreme Court isn’t really in the business of correcting errors by the lower courts, the N.D.Ga. and the Eleventh Circuit combine to have tyrannical power.
12. The Chief Judges of N.D.Ga. and the Eleventh Circuit have ignored the wrongdoing of their fellow judges, Judge Evans and Judge Duffey.  Windsor wrote to them to complain.  Windsor was ignored.  These judges support the wrongdoing, and they actively participate in the wrongdoing.

13. The Judicial Council (now headed by Judge Birch) ignores the facts; ignores the law; says and does whatever it takes to protect their fellow judges; and tramples the Constitutional and legal rights of U.S. citizens.  Windsor filed a complaint against Judge Evans, and it was not properly pursued.  The Judicial Council has ignored massive dishonesty and criminal violations.
14. The United States of America has ignored complaints from Windsor about the Constitutional violations of the federal judges in N.D.Ga. and the Eleventh Circuit.  Through their inaction, they have endorsed violation of the Constitutional protections granted the citizens of the United States that they are supposed to protect. 
15. It should be federal policy that judges and government officials who break the law should lose any and all protection.
16. In an alleged effort to insulate judges from regular legal actions against them, these same judges have obliterated the fundamental rights of U.S. citizens.  Judges have been sanctioned to commit crimes and break laws with no concern about consequences.
17. In the “Factual Background” of the Verified Complaint, Windsor provides a look at what has taken place in three civil actions in the N.D.Ga. and the Eleventh Circuit.  Windsor identified judicial violations and explains how his Constitutional rights were violated.  The Verified Complaint would be twice as long if he had included all of the false statements made by Judge Evans, Maid, and Maid’s Attorneys.  The false statements and the proof of the false statements from citations to the record are referenced and available for this Court.
18. This is not the story of one litigant upset with rulings in his case.  This is the story of the fantasy of Constitutional rights and justice in the United States federal courts in Atlanta, Georgia.  
19. Windsor hereby reports the crimes described herein to this Court pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 4 and asks that this information be presented to a federal grand jury.  
20. Windsor also hopes that the House and Senate Judiciary Committees will investigate.  Judge Evans and Judge Duffey’s names should be added to the list with Alcee Hastings, John Pickering, Samuel Chase, West Hughes Humphrey, Mark W. Delahay, Charles Swain, Robert W. Archibald, George W. English, Harold Louderback, Halsted L. Ritter, Harry Claiborne, Walter Nixon, and Samuel B. Kent.  

21. Windsor brings this action pursuant in part to 28 U.S. C. § 1331, to redress the deprivation of rights secured him by the Constitution and the First, Fifth, Sixth, Seventh, Ninth, and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution, and under the Civil Rights Act of 1871, 42 U.S.C. §1983, 42 U.S.C. §1988, and the common law and redressable pursuant to Bivens v. Six Unknown Narcotics Agents 403 U.S. 388 (1971).  
22. This Verified Complaint includes an independent action in equity for relief from orders, judgments, and injunctions issued in N.D.Ga. Civil Action No. 1:06-CV-0714-ODE ("MIST-1"),
  Civil Action No. 1:09-CV-01543-WSD ("Deposition Action"), and Civil Action No. 1:09-CV-02027-WSD ("MIST-2”) through fraud upon the courts.  
23. This is also an action for declaratory relief pursuant to Title 28, U.S.C. § 2201 & 2202; for injunctive relief, pursuant to Rule 65 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure (“FRCP”); and for other relief.  All of the relief requested is itemized in the Prayer at the end of this Verified Complaint.
PARTIES

24. William M. Windsor (“Windsor” or “Plaintiff”) is a resident of Cobb County, Georgia and a citizen of the United States with his residence at 3924 Lower Roswell Road, Marietta, GA 30068.  Windsor has been a defendant in MIST-1 and the Deposition Action, and is Plaintiff in MIST-2 and this action.  Windsor was guaranteed all the protections of law by the U.S. Constitution, including a fair and impartial judge.
25. Judge William S. Duffey, Jr. (“Judge Duffey”) is subject to the jurisdiction and venue in this Court.  His place of business is United States District Court, 1721 Richard B. Russell Federal Building and U.S. Courthouse, 75 Spring Street, SW, Atlanta, Georgia  30303.  Judge Duffey has been presiding over MIST-2 and the Deposition Action.  Judge Duffey is sued both personally and in his judicial capacity.
26. Judge Orinda D. Evans (“Judge Evans”) is subject to the jurisdiction and venue in this Court.  Her place of business is United States District Court, Richard B. Russell Federal Building and U.S. Courthouse, Suite 1988 - 75 Spring Street, SW, Atlanta, Georgia  30303.  Judge Evans has been presiding over MIST-1.  Judge Evans is sued both personally and in her judicial capacity.  
27. Judge Stanley Birch (“Judge Birch”) is subject to the jurisdiction and venue in this Court.  His place of business is United States Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit, 56 Forsyth Street, NW, Atlanta, Georgia  30303.  Judge Birch is the Acting Chief Judge for the Eleventh Circuit.  Judge Birch has ignored wrongdoing in MIST-1 and MIST-2 and has committed criminal acts through various orders.  Judge Birch is sued both personally and in his judicial capacity.
28. The United States of America (“USA”) is subject to the jurisdiction and venue in this Court.  The USA can be served at the U.S. Attorney’s Office, c/o Civil Process Clerk, 501 3rd Street, Washington DC, 20530.  

29. United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia (“N.D.Ga.”) is subject to the jurisdiction and venue in this Court.  United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia may be served at its place of business, c/o James N. Hatten, Clerk of the Court, Richard B. Russell Federal Building & United States Courthouse, 75 Spring St, NW, Atlanta, GA 30303. 
30. United States Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit (“Eleventh Circuit”) is subject to the jurisdiction and venue in this Court.  United States Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit may be served at its place of business, c/o John Ley, Clerk of the Court, United States Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit, 56 Forsyth Street, NW, Atlanta, Georgia  30303.
31. The Plaintiffs in Civil Action No. 1:09-CV-01543-WSD should be named as parties to this action, but Windsor cannot risk doing so without an order of this Court because Judge Evans will simply claim that this lawsuit is somehow barred by res judicata and constitutes contempt of court.  The true names and capacities, whether individual, corporate, associate, or otherwise, of other defendants DOES 1 through 1000, inclusive, are unknown to Windsor, who therefore sues said Defendants by such fictitious names.  Windsor will seek leave of this Court to amend this Verified Complaint to include their proper names and capacities when they have been ascertained. Windsor is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges, that each of the fictitiously named Defendants participated in and are in some manner responsible for the acts described in this Verified Complaint and the damage resulting therefrom.  These DOES will include court staff and other members of the federal judiciary in Atlanta, Georgia.
JURISDICTION AND VENUE
32. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 because the acts complained of raise federal questions under the Constitution and laws of the United States.  
33. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this case pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1964(c).
34. This Court has supplemental jurisdiction over Windsor’s common law claims.
35. This Court has jurisdiction over this case pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1983, the Constitution, and the First, Fifth, Sixth, Eighth, Ninth, and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution, and Bivens v. Six Unknown Narcotics Agents, 403 U.S. 388 (1971).
36. Jurisdiction to grant declaratory judgment is conferred by 28 U.S.C. § 2201 and 28 U.S.C. § 2202. 
37. Jurisdiction is conferred on this Honorable Court pursuant to 28 USC § 1343(a)(3) and 28 USC § 1346. 

38. This Court has supplemental subject matter jurisdiction over state law claims alleged herein pursuant to 28 USC 1367(a), in that the claims are so related to the federal claims that they form the same case of controversy.

39. An award of costs and attorneys fees is authorized pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988, 18 U.S.C. § 1964(c) and/or the Court’s Inherent Powers.
40. Venue is proper in this Court under 28 U.S.C. § 1391 (e)(1) since some of the Defendants reside in this District. 
41. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 18 USC § 1965 (a) and (b).

42. Windsor’s claims for damages are made in part pursuant to the First Amendment to the US Constitution and 42 USC §1983, 18 USC § 241, 18 USC § 242, and Bivens v. Six Unknown Narcotics Agents, 403 U.S. 388 (1971).
43. The Defendants’ conspiracy against the rights of Windsor are in criminal civil rights violations 18 USC § 241 and 18 USC § 242 which need to be presented to a federal grand jury.

44. Windsor’s prayer for relief regarding costs, including reasonable attorney fees is authorized by 42 USC § 1988 and 28 USC § 2412.

45. This Civil Action includes an action to compel officers of the United States to perform pursuant to 28 USC 1361.
FACTUAL BACKGROUND

46. William Michael Windsor (“Plaintiff” or “Windsor”) was born in 1948 in Columbus, Georgia, USA.  He was the first son of Walter M. Windsor, born in New York, NY, USA, and Mary Johnson, born in Schoolfield, VA, USA.  Windsor is a citizen of the United States of America.  In school and in the United States Army, Windsor was taught that he is protected by the Constitution and its Amendments.  Windsor believed what he was taught.
47. In July 2005, Maid of the Mist Corporation (“MOTM”) and Maid of the Mist Steamboat Company, Ltd. (“Steamboat”) (jointly “Maid”) breached a contract with Alcatraz Media, LLC, Alcatraz Media, Inc. (jointly “Alcatraz”).

48. On August 29, 2005, Maid filed a civil action (“MIST-1”) against Alcatraz Media, LLC, Alcatraz Media, Inc. (jointly “Alcatraz”) and William M. Windsor (“Windsor” or the “Plaintiff”) (Alcatraz and Windsor jointly “A&W.”)  Christopher Glynn (“Glynn”) of Maid signed a sworn affidavit in anticipation of the filing of a verified complaint in Georgia.  Windsor has sworn that 46 of the 50 sworn under penalty of perjury statements in the Affidavit of Glynn were false.
  
  Windsor has proven that 44 of the 46 sworn statements are false with the testimony of Glynn himself or with the testimony of his two managers, Mr. Timothy P. Ruddy (“Ruddy”) and/or Mr. Robert J. Schul (“Schul”).  Glynn did not have personal knowledge.   Proof of the false statements is provided with citations to the record in paragraphs 898 to 1509 of Mist-1 Doc. 462 – Twenty-Fifth Declaration of William M. Windsor (“Dec #25”).  The proof is overwhelming.  The action was filed in Gwinnett County Georgia Court with a verified complaint sworn by Glynn.  It was removed to the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia (“N.D.Ga.”) in March 2006 as Civil Action No. 1:06-CV-0714-ODE (“MIST-1”).  The action was assigned to Judge Orinda D. Evans (“Judge Evans.”) 
  
49. The verified complaint in MIST-1 was a gigantic lie.  This is uncontroverted as Maid has not filed a single solitary affidavit even attempting to dispute the sworn declarations of Windsor and the citations to the record and other proof.  The senior managers of Maid (Glynn, Ruddy, and Schul), have admitted under oath that much of what is in the verified complaint in MIST-1 is false.  

50. There is no question that the verified complaint in MIST-1 was a false sworn pleading that Maid and Maid’s Attorneys knew was false.

51. But Judge Evans refused to even allow Rule 11 violations and perjury to be discussed in MIST-1.

52. Throughout MIST-1, Maid filed false sworn pleadings, false sworn affidavits, and committed a wide variety of violations of the rules and laws.
53. On March 28, 2006, MIST-1 was removed from Gwinnett County Court to the United States District Court Northern District of Georgia Atlanta Division (“N.D.Ga.”) and was assigned to Judge Evans.  
54. The Verified Answer and Counterclaim directly disputed the statements of so-called “fact” in the verified complaint in MIST-1.  One side or the other had to have made false sworn statements.  For no logical reason, Judge Evans sided with Maid.  This biased position had to have come from “extrajudicial sources,” because Judge Evans had not heard any testimony and had not seen any evidence other than two directly contradictory sworn statements and a new affidavit from Glynn.  
55. Judge Evans never changed this position of favoritism to Maid that she established on Day 1.  There was extensive ex parte communication between Judge Evans and Maid’s Attorneys that was never disclosed to A&W.  

56. Judge Evans concealed relevant information from A&W when she took the position in an order dated April 20, 2007 following an in camera inspection that two contracts included nothing relevant to the case and production would not be provided to A&W.
  These contracts were the lease between Maid of the Mist Steamboat Company Limited (Steamboat) and The Niagara Parks Commission (“NPC”) (the “Canadian Lease”) and the license contract between Maid of the Mist Corporation (“MOTM”) and New York State Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation (“OPRHP”) (the “New York License”).  Windsor obtained copies of the Canadian Lease and the New York License under Freedom of Information requests in 2009.  These are the contracts that were valid in 2007 and are still valid today.  The Canadian Lease was produced to Windsor’s Ontario solicitor by The Niagara Parks Commission (“NPC”), and the New York License was produced to Windsor by the New York Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation (“OPRHP”).  These are the contracting parties for the Niagara Falls boat service by the two governments.  Upon review, Windsor immediately realized that the Canadian Lease and the New York License contained extremely relevant information to MIST-1.  
57. On August 9, 2007, Judge Evans granted Summary Judgment for Maid in MIST-1.  Granting Summary Judgment for Maid was completely and totally wrong.  Judge Evans invented facts and twisted and ignored the law to make the ruling that she did in MIST-1.  210 of the 410 sentences in the Summary Judgment Order (“SJ Order”) were false.
  The proof of the false statements in the SJ Order is provided in Exhibit #22 to Amended Dec #3
 and in paragraphs 9561 to 10852 of Dec #25 – MIST-1 Doc. #462.
58. The United States Constitution guarantees an unbiased judge who will always provide litigants with full protection of ALL RIGHTS.   Judge Evans was not fair and did not hear MIST-1 in a fair and impartial manner.  Judge Evans has ignored the law in MIST-1.  
59. The SJ Order misstated the findings that could be made by Judge Evans based upon the evidence presented.  An analysis reveals that the SJ Order contains 416 sentences.  Windsor believes that as many as TWO HUNDRED AND TEN (210) of the 416 statements by Judge Evans in the SJ Order are false or incorrect or are conclusions based on false statements.  The false statements in the SJ Order are addressed in paragraphs 9561 to 10852 of Dec #25 – MIST-1 Doc. 462.  For more proof of how false and improper the SJ Order is, see Exhibits 7 and 9 to Amended Dec #3 – MIST-1 Doc. 377.  All exhibits to Amended Dec #3 (MIST-1 Doc. 377) prove how false and improper this order is. Windsor believes that Judge Evans committed perjury by signing the SJ Order with these alleged facts that are false.  Judge Evans had the evidence before her, and she stated in the SJ Order that she rejected the statements of fact presented by the parties in their summary judgment filings, and she said she drafted the facts based on the evidence that she reviewed.  That Judge Evans claimed that she drafted the facts based on the evidence that she reviewed is absolutely false.  Judge Evans invented facts and made statements in the SJ Order that are proven to be false by the evidence that was before the court.  The SJ Order was signed by Judge Evans while under her oath of office as a judge and as a member of the State Bar of Georgia.  Windsor believes the false statements in the SJ Order constitutes perjury as well as fraud upon the courts.  

60. A&W reached an out-of-court settlement with Maid in December 2008 to stop the legal expense in MIST-1 at approximately $1,000,000.  This was done solely out of fear of what Judge Evans would do to A&W next and the projected $50,000 to $100,000 in legal fees to appeal again along with the possibility of having to pay Maid’s legal fees for the appeal as well.  Yes, it cost A&W over one million dollars in legal fees on a bogus claim of $100 in damages in MIST-1. A&W refused to provide and did not provide general releases or releases of any type to Maid or Maid’s Attorneys in MIST-1.

61. Maid’s Attorneys committed massive dishonesty in MIST-1.
62. Windsor began efforts to reopen MIST-1 in April 2009.  The focus of Windsor’s effort to reopen MIST-1 was to obtain the documents filed under seal in MIST-1 on February 15, 2007.

63. On June 3, 2009, the U.S. Attorney representing Judge Evans filed a motion in MIST-1 to quash a subpoena for the deposition of Judge Evans in MIST-1.
  The motion to quash was referred to Judge William S. Duffey (“Judge Duffey”), and this created Civil Action 1:09-CV-01543-WSD (the “Deposition Action”). Judge Duffey had never had any dealings with Windsor prior to the referral of the motion to quash.  Windsor had never heard the name “Judge William S. Duffey” prior to the referral of the motion to quash.  On June 10, 2009, Mr. Christopher Huber, U.S. Attorney representing Judge Evans, supplemented Judge Evans’ motion to quash.
  He provided a letter from Sigmund R. Adams (“Mr. Adams”) of the Administrative Office of the United States Courts claiming Windsor had not followed the Federal Judiciary’s disclosure regulations.  Mr. Adams’ letter claiming Windsor had not followed the Federal Judiciary’s disclosure regulations was false.  
64. On June 18, 2009, Windsor filed a Motion for Reconsideration of the June 8, 2009 Order Staying Case and Dec #29).
 
  Windsor’s June 18, 2009 Motion for Reconsideration was filed to note “errors” in Judge Duffey’s June 8, 2009 order.  
65. Windsor had made many thousands of sworn statements under penalty of perjury in over 30 declarations, three (3) depositions, and court testimony at the PI Hearing.  If he has lied, he will be guilty of perhaps over 10,000 counts of perjury.  Windsor has stated emphatically that he has not lied, and there is not one single sworn affidavit from Maid to controvert his sworn statements.  Windsor will gladly submit to a polygraph.
  The true statement of facts in MIST-1 has been set out in the Twenty-Fifth Declaration of William M. Windsor (“Dec #25”) that has been filed in MIST-1 –Doc. 462.   
66. Windsor has done hundreds of hours of legal research attempting to find a case that shares similar facts to the MIST-1 case.  He has been unsuccessful.
 
67. On June 30, 2009, an Order to Quash the Deposition of Judge Evans was issued by Judge Duffey.
  The June 30, 2009 order described Windsor as “scurrilous and irresponsible.” This June 30, 2009 order is an outrage.  This was written by a man (Judge Duffey) who did not know Windsor, had never even seen him, and who made such a statement and decision based solely on Windsor’s four uncontroverted sworn affidavits.
  The only explanation for this slander is that Judge Duffey was predisposed to bias against Windsor because he had the audacity to try to depose Judge Evans to obtain information that was available only from Judge Evans that Windsor desperately needed to reopen the case in MIST-1. There is nothing “scurrilous and irresponsible” in the four affidavits that Judge Duffey had before him when he entered the June 30, 2009 order – Dec #29, Dec #35, and Dec #34 – Deposition Action Doc. 15, 17, 21, 24.  The statements made therein are no different than the statements made herein.  The truth.   Judge Evans made as many as 200 false statements in two orders.  She knew statements that she made in her orders were false.  She obstructed justice by concealing documents from A&W.  These are facts, proven with evidence that Windsor has filed in each of the three civil actions.  Judge Duffey ignored the facts and the law in rendering the June 30, 2009 Opinion and Order
 and Judgment.
  

68. Judge Duffey also falsely and irresponsibly claimed that Windsor did not show “extreme and extraordinary circumstances.” 
 Windsor is quite sure that the citizens of the United States will be upset to learn that the following  represents “ordinary” circumstances that our courts should not be concerned with:  A judge who committed perjury as many as 200 times claimed facts in orders of the court that were absolutely false as proven by the evidence before the court.  Maid’s managers committed perjury over 400 times.  Attorneys for Maid filed false sworn pleadings routinely, committed hundreds of counts of perjury, suborned of perjury, obstructed justice, and violated numerous laws, Rules, and the Code of Professional Conduct.
 

69. Windsor filed a complaint asking the FBI to investigate what happened in MIST-1.  The FBI refused to investigate because not enough money was involved.  Windsor asked Judge Duffey to refer the matter to the United States Attorney or a Grand Jury for investigation.  Windsor asked Judge Duffey to hold a hearing where testimony could be taken from Maid, Maid’s Attorneys, and Judge Evans.  This would enable Judge Duffey to substantiate charges of perjury and take action on the perjury during the hearing.
  Judge Duffey did nothing that Windsor requested in the Deposition Action.  Windsor submits that Judge Duffey has violated various Canons of the Code of Judicial Conduct.  
70. Neither Judge Evans nor Judge Duffey cited any legal authority for the creation of Civil Action 1:09-CV-01543-WSD (“Deposition Action”) or to have a sitting judge file a Motion to Quash her own subpoena issued by the District Court Clerk in a case in which she is the presiding judge.  Judge Duffey encouraged perjury, subornation of perjury, Rule 11 violations, obstruction of justice, dishonest Maid, dishonest Maid’s Attorneys, and dishonest Judge Evans in the Deposition Action.  
71. Judge Duffey commited perjury in the Deposition Action.  Judge Duffey issued orders without legal justification in the Deposition Action.  Judge Duffey violated Windsor’s Constitutional rights in the Deposition Action by violating the Constitution and the Code of Judicial Conduct.

72. Federal judges in Atlanta routinely make false statements to avoid dealing with the facts and the law so they may accomplish their own improper purposes.  Judge Duffey ignored Windsor’s uncontroverted proof of massive dishonesty in MIST-1.  Many judges ignored the dishonesty in this matter.  
73. Judge Duffey has made false statements in the Deposition Action, and this is perjury.  Judge Duffey knew statements he has made in his orders in the Deposition Action are false.  Judge Duffey made the statements in the Deposition Action while under his oath as a federal judge and as a member of the State Bar of Georgia.  Judge Duffey made the statements in the Deposition Action intentionally for the purpose of perverting the legal system and covering up for his next-door neighbor, Judge Evans.
74. The rulings of Judge Evans in MIST-1 were frauds.  Judge Duffey conveniently ignored all of the proof in the Deposition Action.  Judge Evans has violated A&W’s Constitutional rights under color of law.  In MIST-1, Judge Evans has violated Canons 1, 2, and 3 of the Code of Judicial Conduct and numerous rules of the Georgia Rules of Professional Conduct (“GRPC”).  Windsor also submits that a Grand Jury should consider whether Judge Evans has committed a variety of crimes.
  
75. The Orders of Judge Duffey in the Deposition Action were based on an erroneous view of the law and a clearly erroneous assessment of the evidence.  Judge Duffey has violated Windsor’s most basic Constitutional rights as has Judge Evans.
76. Windsor questions whether there are any judges in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia who do not routinely ignore the facts and the law in making their rulings.  Judge Evans routinely ignored the facts and the law in MIST-1, and Judge Duffey has done the same.
  
77. The United States is a government of the people, by the people, and for the people. The judicial system’s function is to serve the public by providing a means to serve justice and to resolve disputes. This can only be done in an environment where honesty, integrity, and high moral standards are strictly enforced.  The public is not provided with a means to serve justice and to resolve disputes in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia.
  

78. On July 27, 2009, Windsor filed a complaint to begin Civil Action No. 1:09-CV-02027-WSD (“MIST-2”), an independent action in equity for fraud upon the courts in MIST-1 and RICO.  It was necessary for Windsor to file MIST-2 because of Statute of Limitations issues.  Windsor also needed to get information to a judge other than Judge Evans.  On July 28, 2009, when Windsor was told by the District Court Clerk’s Office that Judge Duffey (the “scurrilous and irresponsible” judge) would be presiding in MIST-2, Windsor immediately went home and prepared a Motion to Recuse Judge Duffey and a Motion for Change of Venue. He returned later in the day and filed these motions.
  

79. On July 30, 2009, a TRO Hearing was held.  Judge Duffey denied the motion for TRO.
  Judge Duffey distributed an order in MIST-2 on Windsor’s motions regarding service of process on Canadian defendants, evidence, representation, motion to change venue, and motion to recuse.  All of Windsor’s motions were denied on July 30, 2009.
  There was not good justification for these rulings.  Judge Duffey’s position on recusal in MIST-2 was the most blatantly biased.  Judge Duffey had a preconceived idea of MIST-2 from information that has come from outside the case.  Judge Duffey called Windsor “scurrilous and irresponsible” in a prior proceeding when the only issue was that Windsor was attempting to take a deposition.  A reasonable person would say that branding someone as “scurrilous and irresponsible” provides a textbook example of “impartiality might reasonably be questioned.”
80. Windsor has just cause to believe that he cannot been given a fair trial in MIST-2. The due process clauses of both the Georgia and the United States Constitutions guarantee a party an impartial and disinterested tribunal in civil cases. Judge Duffey inflicted his bias to damage Windsor in a number of ways in MIST-2.  The bias of Judge Duffey has been pervasive in MIST-2.
 Judge Duffey’s actions in MIST-2 have violated Windsor’s rights and denied justice.
  Judge Duffey has not been honest in MIST-2.
   Judge Duffey has violated Canons of the Code of Judicial Conduct (“CJC”) in MIST-2.
  Judge Duffey denied Windsor’s guarantee of a fair and impartial judge in MIST-2 so he could inflict his extra-judicial bias.  Judge Duffey has effectively denied Windsor’s rights of the equal protection under the law in MIST-2.
  

81. Judge Duffey branded Windsor as a “litigious plaintiff” in the order dated July 30, 2009 in MIST-2  (MIST-2 Doc. 22).  Judge Duffey had no basis to say this.  Judge Duffey had no idea what Windsor had and hadn’t been involved with in terms of litigation unless he had false information obtained from some extra-judicial source (like his friend and proven liar, Judge Evans).  Windsor’s 15-year history as what Judge Duffey describes as a “litigious plaintiff” is that Windsor and his wife sued some people who bounced their rent checks on their unsold Ohio residence, stiffed them for $30,000 or so, and refused to vacate.  
82. The Eleventh Circuit claimed that calling someone “scurrilous and irresponsible” does not indicate that the judge will be biased in a subsequent civil action.  This proves bias by the Eleventh Circuit.  The laws regarding recusal of judges are a joke.  The words are nice on paper, but the reality is that judges rarely recuse themselves, and the courts rarely disqualify judges.  But the bias is there.  The judges are dishonest, and the citizens pay with violation of one of their most fundamental rights.

83. On April 24, 2009, Windsor filed a motion to reopen MIST-1 pursuant to Rule 60(b) primarily due to fraud upon the courts.  A major factor was the discovery of new evidence that had been concealed from A&W by Maid and Judge Evans.
  Windsor also filed a Motion to Recuse Judge Evans in MIST-1.
  On May 12, 2009, Maid filed its Response to Motion to Reopen the Case in MIST-1.
  Windsor believes that there were as many as 23 False Statements in the Response to Motion to Reopen the Case [MIST-1 Doc. 366] sworn to by Mr. Anderson based upon his oath as an officer of the court as a member of the State Bar of Georgia.  This is addressed in paragraphs 10917 to 11055 of Dec #25 – MIST-1 Doc. 462.   Mr. Anderson continued to make false statements without affidavits to support his statements throughout 2009.  
84. Pervasive bias continued in 2009 as was shown on May 22, 2009 in an order from Judge Evans in MIST-1 wherein she falsely claims “the issues of law and fact in this case ultimately were not difficult.”  Judge Evans ignored the facts and the law.
  Judge Evans denied Windsor’s Motion to Reopen the Case and Motion for Recusal in MIST-1. Judge Evans made one false statement after another in her May 22, 2009 order in MIST-1, and she misused case law and ignored case law in an effort to justify her order. There is no factual or legal basis for the actions of Judge Evans in MIST-1.  Judge Evans claimed there was not ANY evidence that Maid acted in bad faith in the course of this litigation in MIST-1.  This is absolutely criminally false, and she has no factual support for her rulings.  Judge Evans lied because there is massive evidence of bad faith.   “Not any evidence” consists of 1,905 pages of sworn testimony by Windsor, 810 exhibits, and thousands of citations to evidence.  And this is just what was filed from April 24, 2009 to May 22, 2009 when the May 22, 2009 Order was issued in MIST-1.

85. Windsor’s reports of perjury, false sworn pleadings, and Rule 11 violations in MIST-1 were never given consideration by Judge Evans.  Judge Evans did absolutely nothing about the claim of Windsor pre or post-SJ that Maid had lied hundreds of times and that Maid’s attorneys had repeatedly violated Rule 11 in MIST-1.
  This Court must not accept that what Judge Evans writes is true. Proof of this is provided in the May 22, 2009 Order and Exhibits 9 and 22 to Amended Dec #3 in MIST-1 listing each false statement and providing proof of the false statements.
  
86. Due to fraud upon the courts, MIST-1 has been a grave miscarriage of justice.  Judgment was obtained by Maid in MIST-1 due to fraud, misrepresentation, and misconduct.  Judge Evans clearly discriminated against Windsor as a pro se party in MIST-1.  She would not even allow Windsor to take a 30(b)(6) deposition in MIST-1.
  

87. Judge Evans ignored everything in MIST-1 from May 22, 2009 until December 22, 2009 when she issued an order denying all pending motions en masse and enjoining Windsor essentially from filing anything anywhere.  Several appeals are pending at the Eleventh Circuit, and several petitions are yet to be submitted to this Court.  Judge Evans made more false statements in her self-serving order of December 22, 2009 in MIST-1.  (Exhibit 2 to the Verified Complaint.)  Judge Evans showed pervasive bias for Maid and pervasive prejudice against Windsor and Alcatraz throiughout MIST-1.  

88. In 2009, Hawkins & Parnell (“H&P”), Mr. Carl Hugo Anderson (“Mr. Anderson”) and Ms. Sarah L. Bright (“Ms. Bright”) (jointly Maid’s Attorneys”) have continued in MIST-1 to make many allegations that are false and have continued to file false pleadings, written motions, and other papers that are false and unsubstantiated and are thus a violation of FRCP Rule 11, the State Bar of Georgia Rules of Professional Conduct, and criminal statues pertaining to perjury and obstruction of justice.  Maid and Maid’s Attorneys have made factual contentions that do not have evidentiary support in MIST-1.  Maid and Maid’s Attorneys have made denials of factual contentions that were not warranted based upon the evidence in MIST-1.  Windsor has provided detailed proof to Judge Evans that Mr. Anderson has violated Rule 11 and has suborned perjury in MIST-1.   

89. The abuses in MIST-1 are immense.  Maid’s managers lied and committed hundreds of counts of perjury.  Maid’s Attorneys filed pleadings, motions, and other papers with knowledge that information therein was false.  Maid’s Attorneys filed pleadings, motions, and other papers for improper purposes. Maid’s Attorneys filed pleadings, motions, and other papers to harass the Defendants.  Maid’s Attorneys filed pleadings, motions, and other papers to increase the cost of litigation.  Maid’s Attorneys filed pleadings, motions, and other papers for which the claims, defenses, and legal contentions were not warranted.  Maid’s Attorneys filed pleadings, motions, and other papers for which the allegations and contentions did not have evidentiary support.  Maid’s Attorneys filed pleadings, motions, and other papers for which the denials of factual contentions were not warranted.  All of these pleadings, motions, and papers will hereinafter be called “Improper Filings.”  All Improper Filings from 2005 to 2008 are detailed in MIST-1 Docket 462, incorporated herein as if attached hereto.  

90. Maid’s Attorneys’ filings in MIST-1 are all made under oath as members of the State Bar of Georgia and as licensed attorneys.  Maid’s Attorneys have made false statements that they know are false.  This is perjury.  Judge Evans should have been obligated to give Maid’s Attorneys the opportunity to answer to these charges of perjury under oath from the witness stand at a hearing.  Her failure to do so is a violation of Windsor’s Constitutional rights.  Under FRCP Rule 60 and other laws, orders may be set aside based upon a finding of perjury and fraud upon the courts.  The record of the Court in MIST-1 will show that Maid and Maid’s Attorneys have filed pleading after pleading after pleading that are false, contain false statements, and contain false sworn affidavits.  The record of the Court in MIST-1 will show that Maid and Maid’s Attorneys have filed improper allegations and pleadings that lack evidentiary support.  The record of the Court in MIST-1 will show that Maid and Maid’s Attorneys have suborned perjury.

91. This brings us to this civil action filed in the United States District Court for the District of Columbia in Washington DC.  
92. Judge Carnes, Judge Dubina, Eric H. Holder, United States Department of Justice, Sally Quillian Yates, Gentry Shelnutt, Committee on the Judiciary of the U.S. House of Representatives, Congressman John Conyers, United States Senate Committee on the Judiciary, Senator Patrick J. Leahy, United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, United States Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit, Judicial Council of the Eleventh Circuit, Federal Bureau of Investigation, and Special Agent Gregory Jones had knowledge of the wrongdoing and acquiesced.  Documents were sent to these Defendants identifying some of the wrongful actions, and they endorsed what Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, and/or the Eleventh Circuit had done without taking any action whatsoever.
93. Windsor submits that MIST-1 is a case of pervasive bias.  Pervasive is defined as “To be present throughout.”  Paragraphs 23063 to 23182 of Dec #23 – MIST-1 Doc. 406 provide a timeline and prove how the bias was present throughout MIST-1.  

94. This pervasive bias continues today as is shown on December 22, 2009 in MIST-1 Doc. 731 – the latest order from Judge Evans wherein she falsely claims that there was no proof of misconduct by Maid’s Attorneys.  Judge Evans is not in a position to make such a statement because she routinely ignored the facts and the law and even invented her own facts.  Judge Evans never demonstrated one iota of impartiality in this case, and she routinely violated the rights of Alcatraz and Windsor.  
95. Windsor made at least 20 requests for a hearing and 8 requests for a conference in MIST-1 in 2009.  Judge Evans dismissed all and never held a hearing or a conference.  In fact, in four years, Windsor was never able to obtain an evidentiary hearing or a conference in MIST-1.  From May 22, 2009 to December 22, 2009, Judge Evans ignored everything in MIST-1.  On December 22, 2009, Judge Evans issued an injunction against Windsor in MIST-1 without a show cause order, without notice, and without a hearing.  
96.  “Maid filed a “MOTION FOR  ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND EXPENSES OF LITIGATION UNDER  28 U.S.C. § 1927, THE COURT’S INHERENT POWERS,  And O.C.G.A. § 13-6-11” (“1927 Motion”) 15 days after Judge Orinda D. Evans dismissed 18 of Maid’s motions, 62 of Windsor’s motions, and did not award sanctions or attorneys’ fees on any motions in MIST-1.  Windsor has advised Judge Evans that he chooses to be heard at an evidentiary hearing on the 1927 Motion in MIST-1.  However, Judge Evans did not grant Windsor a single evidentiary hearing in the five years of MIST-1.  
97. Windsor’s legal options for responding to this 1927 Motion have been severely limited by Judge Evans’ order of December 22, 2009 in MIST-1.  It is a violation of Windsor’s Constitutional rights to have to respond to such a motion as a result.  Windsor should be filing motions for an extension of time, a stay, discovery, a hearing, a conference, sanctions, disqualification of Judge Evans, and more, but he is enjoined from so doing.  Windsor is also blocked by Judge Evans’ order of December 22, 2009 from getting the District Court Clerk to issue subpoenas for depositions and production of documents.  Judge Evans has virtually foreclosed Windsor’s access to the courts.  The Eleventh Circuit has ruled that this cannot be allowed. 

98. Windsor comes to this Court seeking a Temporary Restraining Order, preliminary, and permanent injunction to stop the illegal acts of the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia and the Eleventh Circuit. 

99. Windsor has suffered extreme emotional distress as a result of all of this.  He has been embarrassed publicly.  His reputation has been damaged.  He has suffered an extreme financial setback as the result of this.

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF

INDEPENDENT ACTION FOR RELIEF FROM JUDGMENTS, ORDERS, AND PROCEEDINGS, AND TO SET ASIDE JUDGMENT FOR FRAUD UPON THE COURTS – FRCP Rule 60(d)(1) and the Court’s Inherent Powers 

100. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
101. MOTM, Steamboat, H&P, Mr. Anderson, Judge Evans, and Judge Duffey (“FUTC Conspirators”) committed fraud upon the courts in a variety of ways as described previously in this Verified Complaint above and in MIST-1 Docket 462, 377, 378, and 474, referenced and incorporated herein as if attached hereto.  FUTC Conspirators have committed fraud upon the courts using officers of the court.  FUTC Conspirators were part of unconscionable scheme designed to improperly influence the courts in their decisions.  This was a deliberately planned and carefully executed scheme.  The misconduct of FUTC Conspirators was most egregious.  The fraud was intentional.  The fraud was perpetrated by officers of the court – H&P, Mr. Anderson, Judge Evans, and Judge Duffey and as-yet-named Does.  The perpetration of the fraud was also supported by the efforts of others.  The conduct of FUTC Conspirators was directed at the judicial machinery itself.  The fraud was intended to subvert the administration of justice and affected the integrity of the normal process of adjudication.  FUTC Conspirators perpetrated a fraud affecting the ability of the courts to impartially judge the case.  FUTC Conspirators did a number of things calculated to deceive.   The fraud subverted the integrity of the courts.  
102. Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, Judge Carnes, Judge Dubina, and the Eleventh Circuit judges did not perform their judicial functions.  Judge Carnes failed to act when informed of the activities of Judge Evans.  Judge Dubina and the Eleventh Circuit judges failed to act, and they were supported by the Judicial Council of the Eleventh Circuit and the Judicial Conference.

103.  FUTC Conspirators made averments that were false, and FUTC Conspirators concealed information when under a duty to disclose.  The fraud was designed to deceive the courts into believing facts that were not true.  The courts were unable to adjudicate the matter properly because the courts were influenced by false information.  Such conduct had public policy implications far beyond those attendant to the litigants in this action, and the court system itself.

104. The judgments, injunctions, and orders in the underlying actions must be set aside due to fraud upon the courts pursuant to FRCP Rule 60(d)(1) and this Court’s Inherent Powers.

105. Windsor and Alcatraz do not have any adequate remedy at law.  
106. Judge Evans' and Judge Duffey’s actions in engaging in the conspiracy are not part of a function normally performed by judges, and thus are non-judicial.  Judge Evans and Judge Duffey do not have immunity for non-judicial acts.  This willfulness is inextricably related to, but exceeds mere error.
107. Windsor and Alcatraz were without knowledge that the claims of irrelevance of documents withheld from them by Judge Evans were fraudulent. A&W settled with Maid in December 2008 in ignorance of the fraud.  Judge Evans continues to withhold documents.  The fraud prevented issues from being raised and deprived Windsor and Alcatraz the ability to make valid claims and defenses.  
108. Tampering with the administration of justice in the manner indisputably shown here involves far more than an injury to a single litigant. It is a wrong against the institutions set up to protect and safeguard the public, institutions in which fraud cannot complacently be tolerated consistently with the good order of society.  The public welfare demands that the agencies of public justice be not so impotent that they must always be mute and helpless victims of deception and fraud.  The judgment, orders, injunctions, and proceedings involve an issue of great moment to the public.  
109. The deliberate scheme of the judges by which the integrity of the judicial process has been fraudulently perverted is a scheme used by the judges to cause injury to more than a single litigant.  Proof of the scheme, and of its complete success up to date, is conclusive.  As a result of the fraud, there has been a grave miscarriage of justice, and Windsor and Alcatraz have been deprived of over $1,000,000 to which they were lawfully entitled and they have suffered substantial losses for which they should be compensated in damages. The settlement that Windsor and Alcatraz made with Maid was wrongly obtained, tainted by the fraud, and is no bar to relief pursuant to the Court's authority under FRCP, case law, and the Court's inherent powers.

110. Under Federal law, when any officer of the court has committed "fraud on the court," the orders and judgment of that court are void, of no legal force or effect.  The orders and judgments must be voided.

111. The actions of FUTC Conspirators, Judge Carnes, and Judge Dubina in Fraud Upon the Courts were sufficiently egregious to warrant extraordinary relief.  

112. All of the elements necessary to vacate the orders, injunctions, proceedings, and judgments by mechanism of a Rule 60 independent action exist in this case.
SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Violation of Georgia RICO Act – O.C.G.A. 16-14-1 et seq
113. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through 137 above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
114. The conduct of Defendants violates the Georgia Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act, O.C.G.A. § 16-14-1 et seq ("Georgia RICO”), as more fully set forth below.

115. Defendants have engaged in an ongoing pattern of racketeering activity as defined by O.C.G.A. § 16-14-3.  Defendants knowingly devised or participated in a scheme to defraud Windsor.  They did so willingly with an intent to defraud.  Defendants used the U.S. mails, and/or UPS, Federal Express, and other private or commercial interstate and foreign carriers for the purpose of executing the scheme.  The activity engaged in by Defendants consists of two or more predicate acts of racketeering activity, the most recent of which occurred within four years after the commission of a prior act of racketeering activity.  Each of the “predicate acts” is set out separately below in paragraphs 271 to 323 so that the elements of each predicate act may be clearly addressed. These paragraphs are incorporated herein.  The activity engaged in by Defendants had the same or similar purposes, results, participants, victims, or methods of commission, or is otherwise interrelated by distinguishing characteristics and are not isolated events.  The "pattern of racketeering activity" consisted of many incidents of racketeering activity that have the same or similar intents, results, accomplices, victims, and methods of commission and are interrelated by distinguishing characteristics.  The acts of racketeering activity committed by Defendants have the same or similar methods of commission in that they involve the various aspects of committing fraud in a lawsuit, including obstruction of justice, perjury, false statements in orders, improper claims of law and case law, and more.  The acts of racketeering activity committed by Defendants have the same or similar objective: commit fraud upon the courts and upon Windsor and Alcatraz.  The acts of racketeering activity committed by Defendants have the same or similar victims, including Alcatraz Media, LLC, Alcatraz Media, Inc., and William M. Windsor.  The acts of racketeering activity committed by Defendants are otherwise related by distinguishing characteristics including, but not limited to, the involvement of lies, perjury, falsification, and obstruction of justice.  The racketeering acts are related.  The racketeering acts have the same or similar purposes, results, participants, victims, and/or methods of commission and are otherwise interrelated by distinguishing characteristics and are not isolated events.  Defendants committed active misrepresentation as well as material omissions intended to create a false impression. Defendants’ acts of racketeering activity involve a distinct threat of long-term racketeering activity.  This activity has continued for years, is ongoing at the present time, and will continue into the future with a threat of repetition unless halted by judicial intervention.  Defendants’ actions appear to be part of a regular way of conducting business.  

116. Upon information and belief, the acts of racketeering activity have affected not only Windsor, Alcatraz Media, LLC, and Alcatraz Media, Inc., but others who have been parties to civil actions in the N.D.Ga. and the Eleventh Circuit.
117. Defendants have committed numerous violations of predicate acts as part of the pattern of racketeering activity.

118. Defendants were aware of the general existence and nature of the enterprise, that it extended beyond each person’s individual role, and with that awareness participated in, aided, or furthered the enterprise’s activities or had an ownership interest in the enterprise.  Each Defendant has participated in the operation and/or management of the affairs of an enterprise.    Judge Evans and Judge Duffey were involved with Does in the operation and management of the affairs of the enterprise, which exists for Judge Evans’ benefit.  

119. Judge Evans' and Judge Duffey’s actions in engaging in the conspiracy are not part of a function normally performed by a judge, and thus are non-judicial.  Judge Evans and Judge Duffey do not have immunity for non-judicial acts.
120. The association of Defendants constitutes an enterprise.  The enterprise is composed of groups of individuals and entities associated in fact although not a legal entity.  
121. Judge Evans’ participation in the scheme was to grant a TRO with essentially no bond in complete disregard for the facts; rule against Alcatraz and Windsor on everything – every contested motion (believed to be as many as 100); make every decision in the case with the plan to find Alcatraz and Windsor liable regardless of the facts; issue orders with as many as 200 false statements of “fact.”  Judge Duffey’s participation was to block Windsor from pursuing Judge Evans for her wrongdoing.  Judge Evans is the director of the enterprise.  She made false statements.  She committed perjury.  She committed obstruction of justice.  She violated the civil and Constitutional rights of Windsor and Alcatraz.  She ignored the facts and the law to damage Windsor and Alcatraz.  She deceived the Eleventh Circuit and the Supreme Court with false information.  She damaged Windsor in 2009 by refusing to act on various motions filed with her court and acting against Windsor for the purpose of shielding her wrongdoing.  She damaged through obstruction of justice.  Does 1 to 1000 include co-conspirators with Judge Evans and Judge Duffey such as clerks, staff, and other judges.  The enterprise was established and maintained for the purpose of committing illegal acts.  The enterprise affected interstate commerce through an injunction that prohibits Alcatraz and Windsor from transacting certain business in interstate commerce.  The enterprise affected interstate commerce through the loss of funds that A&W could have used to promote business.
122. Defendants’ violations of the Georgia RICO Act proximately have caused Windsor to suffer injury to his property by losing money on legal expenses and losing time that could have been spent developing profitable businesses.  The injuries suffered by Windsor were proximately caused by Defendants.  There is a direct relationship between the injuries suffered and the injurious conduct. 

123. The foregoing conduct constitutes a violation of Georgia RICO.

124. Windsor has been injured by reason of Defendants’ violation of O.C.G.A. 16-14-4(a) and is entitled to recover three times the actual damages sustained and his costs of suit including reasonable attorneys’ fees, filing fees, court reporter costs, printing, mailing, shipping, legal research, and miscellaneous expenses.

125. In addition, Defendants’ actions showed willful misconduct, malice, fraud, wantonness, oppression and an entire want of care that raises the presumption of conscious indifference to consequences and specific intent to cause harm, entitling Windsor to receive punitive damages sufficient to deter, penalize, or punish Defendants in light of the circumstances of the case.

126. Under O.C.G.A. § 51-12-5.1(b), punitive damages may be awarded in such tort actions in which it is proven by clear and convincing evidence that Defendants’ actions showed willful misconduct, malice, fraud, wantonness, oppression, and that entire want of care which raises the presumption of conscious indifference to consequences.

127. Windsor is also an aggrieved person within the meaning of O.C.G.A. § 16-14-6(b). As a result, Windsor is entitled to appropriate preliminary and permanent injunctive relief.  Pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 16-14-6(a), Windsor asks this Court to issue appropriate orders and judgment requiring Defendants to cease their illegal conduct and impose reasonable restrictions upon Defendants’ future activities sufficient to prohibit future violations of the law.

128. Defendants have endeavored to violate O.C.G.A. § 16-14-4(a), in violation of O.C.G.A. § 16-14-4(c).  Defendants have also conspired with others, known and unknown, to violate O.C.G.A. § 16-14-4(a), in violation of O.C.G.A. § 16-14-4(c).  Defendants’ violations of the Georgia RICO Act were intended to and did in fact subvert the legal and judicial process in MIST-1, the Deposition Action, and MIST-2.

129. Defendants are guilty of violation of the Georgia RICO Act.  Respondeat superior (principal is liable for agents’ misconduct: knowledge of, participation in, and benefit from a RICO enterprise).

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Violation of Federal Civil RICO Act-- 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c) 
130. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through 137 above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
131. The conduct of Defendants violates the federal Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act, 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c) ("federal RICO”), as more fully set forth below.  An action under the Georgia RICO statute, O.C.G.A. § 16-14-1 et seq., and one under the federal RICO statute, 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c) are essentially the same.
132. All Defendants conspired to, and did, operate a RICO enterprise to defraud Windsor and Alcatraz.  Defendants, individually and in conspiracy with one another, are all RICO persons who violated RICO by engaging in (1) "racketeering activity," (2) conducted through a "pattern," (3) affecting an "enterprise," (4) impacting interstate or foreign commerce.  Defendants violated 18 USC §1962(c), by conducting and participating in the conduct of the affairs of an enterprise that is engaged in or affects interstate commerce through a pattern of racketeering activity (mail and wire fraud and obstruction of justice) as alleged herein. Defendants also violated 18 USC §1962(d) by conspiring as alleged herein to violate 18 USC §1962(c). All of Defendants’ predicate acts have a similar purpose - to damage Windsor and Alcatraz - all have similar victims, people and companies who have legal issues, all have had similar results, the loss of money, time, and damage to business reputation. The methods of commission of the fraud have been virtually identical and was scripted by the principal participants in the fraudulent schemes. Defendants’ repeated and persistent use of interstate mail and wire transmission to commit and perpetuate their fraud is related in time and purpose, is continuing, threatens to continue indefinitely into the future and constitutes a pervasive “pattern” of racketeering activity.  Windsor and Alcatraz have been damaged in that they have lost approximately $1,000,000, had their business improperly enjoined, and had their time consumed by this litigation, all as a direct result of Defendants’ violation of 18 USC §1962( c) and (d). 

133. Windsor is entitled to recover mandatory treble damages, cost and attorney’s fees under 18 USC §1964(c). This Court should also order appropriate relief under 18 USC §1964(a).

134. Defendants have engaged in an ongoing pattern of racketeering activity as defined by 18 U.S.C. § 1961, et seq.  Defendants knowingly devised or participated in a scheme to defraud Windsor.  They did so willingly with an intent to defraud.  Defendants used the U.S. mails, and/or UPS and Federal Express, and other private or commercial interstate and foreign carriers for the purpose of executing the scheme.  The activity engaged in by Defendants consists of two or more predicate acts of racketeering activity, the most recent of which occurred within four years after the commission of a prior act of racketeering activity.  The activity engaged in by Defendants had the same or similar purposes, results, participants, victims, or methods of commission, or is otherwise interrelated by distinguishing characteristics and are not isolated events.
135. Paragraphs 152 to 167 above are specifically incorporated herein, though references to Georgia law should be disregarded as this cause of action is a violation of federal RICO Act.  Each of the “predicate acts” is set out separately in paragraphs 271 to 323 so that the elements of each predicate act may be clearly addressed.

136. The federal RICO pattern of racketeering activity engaged in by Defendants consists of more than two acts of racketeering activity.  From at least 2006, and continuing thereafter up to and including the date of the filing of this Verified Complaint, Defendants were persons associated with an "enterprise" engaged in activities that affected interstate commerce, and they knowingly and willfully participated in the conduct of the enterprise's affairs "through a pattern of racketeering activity," in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1961 and 1962(c).

137. Defendants participated in many predicate acts of racketeering activity.  These acts were committed as part of a scheme.  The acts of Defendants directly caused Windsor and Alcatraz to lose money.  The acts of Defendants caused Windsor and Alcatraz to have to pay legal fees to MOTM and Steamboat.  The acts of Defendants caused Windsor and Alcatraz to have to pay court costs, filing fees, and other legal expenses.  Defendants were associated with an "enterprise" as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 1961 and 1962(c).  Each Defendant was aware of the general existence of the enterprise.

138. The judges’ actions in engaging in the conspiracy are not part of a function normally performed by judges, and thus are non-judicial.  Judges do not have immunity for non-judicial acts.
139. Each defendant knowingly and willfully committed, or aided and abetted the commission of at least two of the predicate offenses specifically alleged and described.  Defendants committed Mail Fraud, Wire Fraud, and obstruction of justice as members of the enterprise.  The predicate offenses committed by Defendants were connected with each other by a common scheme, plan, and motive and demonstrate a pattern of criminal activity.  Through the commission of two or more connected offenses, Defendants conducted or participated in the conduct of the "enterprise's" affairs.  Each Defendant had some part in either the management or the operation of the affairs of the enterprise itself.  The enterprise is engaged in, or its activities affected, interstate commerce.  Windsor and Alcatraz were injured in business and lost property as a proximate result of Defendants’ commission of the pattern of racketeering activity.  Except for such activity by Defendants, the injury or damage claimed by Windsor and Alcatraz would not have occurred.  The acts of Defendants were done willfully, intentionally and with callous and reckless indifference to the rights of Windsor and Alcatraz so as to entitle Windsor to an award of punitive damages in addition to compensatory damages.  The predicate acts formed a pattern by having the same or similar purposes, results, participants, victims, and methods of commission, and were otherwise interrelated by distinguishing characteristics.  The predicate acts threaten the likelihood of continued criminal activity posing a threat of continuity projecting into the future.

140. Defendants committed of violations of federal RICO and RICO Conspiracy – 18 U.S.C. § 1961 et seq and 18 U.S.C. § 1962(d).  Respondeat superior (principal is liable for agents’ misconduct: knowledge of, participation in, and benefit from a RICO enterprise).  In addition to those substantive offenses listed in section 1961(5), a criminal conspiracy to commit one or more of those offenses is also a predicate act of racketeering activity.
FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Violation of Federal RICO Conspiracy Offense – 18 USC § 1962(d)
141. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through 137 above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
142. Defendants, in some way or manner, came to mutual understandings to try to accomplish a common and unlawful plan as described previously in this Verified Complaint.  The mutual understanding was to break the law.  Defendants willfully became members of such conspiracy.  During the existence of the conspiracy, various Defendants knowingly violated the RICO Act.  These violations were knowingly committed in an effort to carry out or accomplish some object of the conspiracy.  The conspiracy was designed to deprive Windsor and Alcatraz of legal rights.  The conspiracy was designed to deceive the courts to obtain an illegal objective. 
143. Paragraphs 152 to 167 above are specifically incorporated herein, though references to Georgia law should be disregarded as this cause of action is a violation of federal RICO Act.  Each of Defendants is responsible as a joint tortfeasor for all damages ensuing from the wrongs.
144. The judges' actions in engaging in the conspiracy are not part of a function normally performed by judges, and thus are non-judicial.  Judges do not have immunity for non-judicial acts.
145. There was an agreement by Defendants to violate RICO's substantive provisions.  Defendants agreed with associates to form the enterprise, agreed to associate with that enterprise, and agreed to commit two predicate acts in furtherance of a pattern of racketeering activity in connection with the enterprise. Two or more persons agreed to conduct or to participate, directly or indirectly, in affairs through a pattern of racketeering activity.  Judge Evans and Judge Duffey agreed or conspired with one or more other persons to conduct or to participate in the conduct of affairs through a pattern of racketeering activity.  Two or more persons agreed to conduct or to participate, directly or indirectly, in affairs through a pattern of racketeering activity.  Judge Evans and Judge Duffey were a party to or member of that agreement.
146. Judge Evans joined the agreement or conspiracy knowing of its objective to conduct or participate, directly or indirectly, in the conduct of an enterprise’s affairs through a pattern of racketeering activity.  Judge Evans intended to join together with at least one other alleged conspirator to achieve that objective.  Judge Evans had a plan that called for some conspirators to perpetrate the crime and others to provide support.  The supporters are as guilty as the perpetrators.  
147. A conspirator must simply intend to further an endeavor which, if completed, would satisfy all elements of a civil RICO claim.  Judge Evans knowingly agreed to facilitate or further a scheme which, if completed, would constitute a RICO violation involving at least one other conspirator who would be employed by or associated with the enterprise and who would participate in the operation or management of the enterprise.  USA agreed or conspired with one or more other persons to conduct or to participate in the conduct of affairs through a pattern of racketeering activity.  A conspirator must simply intend to further an endeavor which, if completed, would satisfy all elements of a civil RICO claim.  This means all Defendants are part of this RICO claim. All Defendants are charged with knowingly and willfully conspiring to violate 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c), the alleged conspiracy itself being a separate crime or offense in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1962(d).  Defendants agreed to join the conspiracy, agreed to commit predicate acts, and/or knew that those acts were part of a pattern of racketeering activity.  Defendants, in some way or manner, came to a mutual understanding to try to accomplish a common and unlawful plan, namely, to engage in a "pattern of racketeering activity" as charged above; and each Defendant knowingly and willfully became a member of such conspiracy; and at the time Defendants knowingly and willfully agreed to join in such conspiracy, Defendants did so with the specific intent either to personally participate in the commission of two or more "predicate offenses," or each defendant specifically intended to otherwise participate in the affairs of the "enterprise" with the knowledge and intent that other members of the conspiracy would commit two or more "predicate offenses" as a part of a "pattern of racketeering activity."

148. The conspiracy proximately caused damages to Windsor.  Additional claims may be determined following discovery.  Respondeat superior (principal is liable for agents’ misconduct: knowledge of, participation in, and benefit from a RICO enterprise).
FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Violation of Due Process and Deprivation of Rights – 42 U.S.C. § 1983 
and Bivens v. Six Unknown Named Agents of Fed. Bureau of Narcotics
149. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through 137 above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
150. Judge Orinda D. Evans, Judge William S. Duffey, Jr., Judge Julie E. Carnes, Judge Joel F. Dubina, Eric H. Holder, Sally Quillian Yates, Gentry Shelnutt, Congressman John Conyers, Senator Patrick J. Leahy, Sigmund R. Adams, Special Agent Gregory Jones, and unknown DOES (the “Federal Officers”) proximately caused a deprivation of federally-protected rights.

151. Federal Officers are persons who committed conduct.  Federal Officers acted under "color of law."   Federal Officers acted improperly using and ignoring the laws of the State of Georgia to deprive Windsor of federally protected rights.  Federal Officers denied Windsor of Constitutional rights.  Judge Evans exercised power possessed by virtue of state law and made possible only because she was clothed with the authority of state law.  The deprivation represents an abuse of authority and/or lies outside the authority of Federal Officers because they were acting within the scope of their employment under the color of law.

152. Judge Evans violated Georgia law O.C.G.A. 43-4B and violated the United States Constitutional rights of Windsor. Judge Evans did an affirmative act and failed to perform an act that she was legally required to do that caused the deprivation of Windsor’s Constitutional rights.  Judge Evans should have no right to immunity for her actions.  Judge Evans violated clearly established statutory or constitutional rights of which a reasonable person would have known.  Judge Evans acted in clear absence of all jurisdiction in violating Georgia law O.C.G.A. 43-4B.  Judge Evans violated the Fourteenth Amendment rights of Windsor enforceable, namely substantive and procedural due process, the equal protection of the laws, and those rights from the Bill of Rights incorporated by the Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment.  Judge Evans deprived Windsor of those rights in the Bill of Rights made applicable to the states through incorporation; claims under the substantive component of the Due Process Clause that bars certain arbitrary, wrongful government actions, regardless of the fairness of the procedures used to implement them; and claims under the procedural component of the Due Process Clause that prohibits the deprivation of life, liberty, or property without fair procedure.

153. Judge Evans and Judge Duffey denied Windsor an impartial tribunal.  Judge Carnes, Judge Dubina, and the Eleventh Circuit also denied Windsor an impartial tribunal.  Windsor respectfully contends that the conduct of Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, Judge Carnes, Judge Dubina, and the Eleventh Circuit denied the rights to property without due process of law and therefore is in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1983.  Maid and Maid attorneys submitted a significant amount of false and/or fraudulent evidence so as to deceive and confuse the courts; Glynn, Ruddy, and Schul lied and did not testify truthfully in depositions and used this false sworn testimony to prejudice the courts against Windsor; Maid attorneys filed false sworn pleadings; Glynn, Ruddy, Berry, and Carlson lied and did not testify truthfully in affidavits and provided false sworn testimony.  Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, Judge Carnes, Judge Dubina, and the Eleventh Circuit ignored Windsor when he informed them of this wrongdoing.  The willfulness of Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, Judge Carnes, Judge Dubina, and the Eleventh Circuit, characterized by “open defiance or reckless disregard of a Constitutional requirement” of record establishes a violation of rights under color of law. Failure to follow proper procedure has resulted in a violation of Windsor’s civil rights, where Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, Judge Carnes, Judge Dubina, and the Eleventh Circuit have been acting in the absence of all jurisdiction.  

154. Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, Judge Carnes, Judge Dubina, and the Eleventh Circuit ignored the perjury in MIST-1.  Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, Judge Carnes, Judge Dubina, and the Eleventh Circuit issued orders and the judgment based almost entirely upon perjured testimony.  The perjury was brought to Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, Judge Carnes, Judge Dubina, and the Eleventh Circuit attention on several occasions, and they did nothing about it.  Windsor submits that there can be little proof of extrajudicial bias that can be any better than to demonstrate that Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, Judge Carnes, Judge Dubina, and the Eleventh Circuit welcomed the opportunity to have the underlying actions perverted by perjury.  The actions of Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, Judge Carnes, Judge Dubina, and the Eleventh Circuit served to invite and promote the perjury because they did absolutely nothing but turn a blind eye and a deaf ear to the reports of perjury and the record before the courts that provides clear and absolute proof of the hundreds of counts of perjury.  Maid did not even attempt to dispute the perjury with a single solitary affidavit.  That is because Maid cannot dispute the facts that are clearly before the court in MIST-1.  

155. Denying Windsor and Alcatraz access to important records, evidence, and witnesses is a violation of Equal Protection.  Judge Evans denied such access.  Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, Judge Carnes, Judge Dubina, and the Eleventh Circuit have violated Windsor’s civil and Constitutional rights under color of law.  Windsor has just cause to believe that A&W were not been given a fair trial and could not have a fair trial due to the issues alleged.
156. The actions of Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, Judge Carnes, Judge Dubina, and the Eleventh Circuit are not part of a function normally performed by judges, and thus are non-judicial.  Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, Judge Carnes, Judge Dubina, and the Eleventh Circuit do not have immunity for non-judicial acts.
157. Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, Judge Carnes, Judge Dubina, and the Eleventh Circuit have violated 42 U.S.C. § 1983.  Eric H. Holder, Sally Quillian Yates, Gentry Shelnutt, Congressman John Conyers, Senator Patrick J. Leahy, Sigmund R. Adams, Special Agent Gregory Jones, and unknown DOES ignored Windsor’s please and claims of violations of Constitutional rights, criminal activity by Judge Evans, and fraud upon the courts in the underlying actions.  Eric H. Holder, Sally Quillian Yates, Gentry Shelnutt, Congressman John Conyers, Senator Patrick J. Leahy, Sigmund R. Adams, Special Agent Gregory Jones, and unknown DOES have violated 42 U.S.C. § 1983.  Windsor was damaged as a result.

SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Violation of Due Process and Deprivation of Rights – 42 U.S.C. § 1985(2)
158. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through 137 above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
159. It is a violation of Due Process and deprivation of rights if two or more persons conspire for the purpose of impeding, hindering, obstructing, or defeating, in any manner, the due course of justice in any State or Territory, with intent to deny to any citizen the equal protection of the laws, or to injure him or his property for lawfully enforcing, or attempting to enforce, the right of any person, or class of persons, to the equal protection of the laws.

160. Judge Orinda D. Evans, Judge William S. Duffey, Jr., Judge Julie E. Carnes, Judge Joel F. Dubina, Eric H. Holder, Sally Quillian Yates, Gentry Shelnutt, Congressman John Conyers, Senator Patrick J. Leahy, Sigmund R. Adams, Special Agent Gregory Jones, and unknown DOES (“Federal Officers”) conspired for the purpose of impeding, hindering, obstructing, and/or defeating the due course of justice with intent to deny to Windsor the equal protection of the laws and to injure him while attempting to enforce his right to self representation, and this violated the equal protection of the laws.

161. Federal Officers conspired to deprive pro se Windsor of equal protection or equal privileges and immunities.  Defendants and unknown Does acted in furtherance of the conspiracy.  Windsor suffered an injury and/or deprivation resulting therefrom.  A class-based discriminatory motive lurks behind the conspiratorial activities.  Windsor was treated differently as a pro se party than parties with legal counsel are treated.  Defendants’ actions were motivated by invidiously discriminatory animus.  Defendants acted in their official capacity at times.
162. Judge Evans has violated Windsor’s Constitutional and civil rights under color of law and has denied due process.  Judge Duffey has violated Windsor’s Constitutional and civil rights under color of law and has denied due process.  Judge Carnes and Judge Dubina have violated Windsor’s Constitutional and civil rights under color of law and has denied due process.  Federal Officers have violated Windsor’s Constitutional and civil rights under color of law and has denied due process.  Denying A&W access to important records, evidence, and witnesses, as Judge Evans did, is a violation of Equal Protection. 

163. The conduct of Federal Officers deprived Windsor of a right secured or protected by the Constitution and laws of the United States.  Federal Officers conspired against Windsor. Federal Officers received notice of a pattern of unconstitutional acts committed by other Defendants. Federal Officers demonstrated deliberate indifference to or tacit authorization of the offensive acts.  Federal Officers failed to take sufficient remedial action.  Federal Officers acted in furtherance of the conspiracy.  Such failure proximately caused injury to Windsor.  The conduct of Federal Officers denied the rights to property without due process of law and therefore is in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1985.  Maid submitted a significant amount of false and/or fraudulent evidence so as to deceive and confuse the courts; Glynn, Ruddy, and Schul lied and did not testify truthfully in depositions and used this false sworn testimony to prejudice the courts against Windsor; Maid attorneys filed false sworn pleadings; Glynn, Ruddy, Berry, and Carlson lied and did not testify truthfully in affidavits and provided false sworn testimony.  Federal Officers ignored Windsor when he informed them of this wrongdoing.  The willfulness of Federal Officers, characterized by “open defiance or reckless disregard of a Constitutional requirement” of record establishes a violation of rights under color of law.  Failure to follow proper procedure has resulted in a violation of Windsor’s civil rights, where Judge Evans and Judge Duffey have been acting in the absence of all jurisdiction.  

164. A judge is supposed to disqualify himself or herself in a proceeding in which the judge’s impartiality might reasonably be questioned.  Judge Evans and Judge Duffey ignored the perjury in MIST-1.  Judge Evans issued orders and the judgment based almost entirely upon perjured testimony.  The perjury was brought to the attention of Judge Evans on several occasions, and she did nothing about it.  Windsor submits that there can be little proof of extrajudicial bias that can be any better than to demonstrate that Judge Evans welcomed the opportunity to have this case perverted by perjury.  Judge Evans’ actions served to invite and promote the perjury because she did absolutely nothing but turn a blind eye and a deaf ear to the reports of perjury and the record before the Court in MIST-1 that provides clear and absolute proof of the hundreds of counts of perjury.  Maid did not even attempt to dispute the perjury with a single solitary affidavit.  This is because Maid cannot dispute the facts that are clearly before the Court in MIST-1.  Failure to act on the perjury deprived Windsor and Alcatraz of the right under Georgia law to have the judgments and orders set aside for perjury.

165. Judge Evans and Judge Duffey have violated A&W’s civil and constitutional rights under color of law.  A&W were denied due process.  Fair procedures were not used to prevent the wrongful deprivation of interests.  A&W did not receive a guarantee of basic fairness.  A&W feel that we were not treated fairly.  Judge Evans awarded attorneys’ fees to Maid under Georgia law, and her ruling was improper and illegal.  Judge Evans has violated O.C.G.A. 43-4B by issuing an injunction against A&W.  Denying Windsor and Alcatraz access to important records, evidence, and witnesses is a violation of Equal Protection.  Judge Evans denied such access.  Windsor has just cause to believe that he was not given a fair trial and could not have a fair trial due to the issues alleged.

166. Judge Evans' and Judge Duffey’s actions are not part of a function normally performed by judges, and thus are non-judicial.  Judge Evans and Judge Duffey do not have immunity for non-judicial acts.
167. Judge Evans and Judge Duffey have violated 42 U.S.C. § 1985(2).  Federal Officers have violated 42 U.S.C. § 1985(2).  Windsor was damaged as a result.
SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Violation of Constitutional Rights – First Amendment and in General
168. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through 137 above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
169. Judge Orinda D. Evans, Judge William S. Duffey, Jr., Judge Julie E. Carnes, Judge Joel F. Dubina, Administrative Offices of the United States Courts, United States of America, United States Department of Justice, Eric H. Holder, Sally Quillian Yates, Gentry Shelnutt, Committee on the Judiciary of the U.S. House of Representatives, Congressman John Conyers, United States Senate Committee on the Judiciary, Senator Patrick J. Leahy, United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, United States Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit, Judicial Council of  the Eleventh Circuit, Judicial Conference of the United States, Sigmund R. Adams Federal Bureau of Investigation, and Special Agent Gregory Jones (“Government Defendants”) had a Constitutional duty to Windsor.  Government Defendants breached their Constitutional duties to Windsor through action and inaction.  The action and inaction of Government Defendants in violating Windsor’s Constitutional rights under color of law caused damage to Windsor.
170. Windsor was entitled to a fair trial, and there was little that was fair from Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, or the Eleventh Circuit.  By continuing today to adjudicate motions in MIST-1, Judge Evans is violating Windsor’s right to an impartial tribunal.  By continuing today to adjudicate motions in MIST-2, Judge Duffey is violating Windsor’s right to an impartial tribunal.
171. Judge Evans' and Judge Duffey’s actions are not part of a function normally performed by judges, and thus are non-judicial.  Judge Evans and Judge Duffey do not have immunity for non-judicial acts.
172. Judge Evans denied Windsor by an illegal injunction that denies his access to the courts.  Judge Duffey denied Windsor by placing unfair restrictions on filing in MIST-2.  Judge Evans and Judge Duffey have both wrongfully denied Alcatraz the ability to join these actions as Plaintiffs.  Judge Evans has delayed acting so that the statute of limitations expired on some of Alcatraz’s claims.
173. Windsor has been damaged.  Windsor prays for monetary damages against the Federal Officers based upon violations of federal constitutional rights pursuant to Bivens v. Six Unknown Named Agents of the Fed. Bureau of Narcotics.
174. The Government Defendants have not respected Windsor’s legal rights.  The government has all but ignored Windsor’s rights.
  Judge Evans and Judge Duffey have demonstrated pervasive bias against A&W.  The Government Defendants have vindictively penalized Windsor.  It seems to Windsor that the Northern District of Georgia and the Eleventh Circuit are corrupt.  These are strong words, but Windsor believes he can present information that a reasonable person will find to be evidence of corruption.
  
175. Windsor has been denied due process.  

EIGHTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Violation of Constitutional Rights – Fifth Amendment

176. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
177. Government Defendants had a Constitutional duty to Windsor.  Government Defendants breached their Constitutional duties to Windsor through action and inaction.  The action and inaction of Government Defendants in violating Windsor’s Constitutional rights under color of law caused damage to Windsor.
178. Judge Evans' actions are not part of a function normally performed by a judge, and thus are non-judicial.  Judge Evans does not have immunity for non-judicial acts.
179. Windsor has been damaged.  Windsor prays for monetary damages against Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, and Federal Officials based upon violations of federal constitutional rights pursuant to Bivens v. Six Unknown Named Agents of the Fed. Bureau of Narcotics.
NINTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Violation of Constitutional Rights – Sixth Amendment

180. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
181. Judge Evans had a Constitutional duty to Windsor.  Judge Evans breached Constitutional duties to Windsor through action and inaction.  The action and inaction of Defendants in violating Windsor’s Constitutional rights under color of law caused damage to Windsor.  Windsor was entitled to a fair trial, and there was little that was fair from Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, or the Eleventh Circuit.  
TENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Violation of Constitutional Rights – Seventh Amendment

182. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
183. Judge Evans had a Constitutional duty to Windsor.  Judge Evans breached her Constitutional duties to Windsor through action and inaction.  Judge Evans denied hearings.  Judge Evans denied a trial.

ELEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Violation of Constitutional Rights – Ninth Amendment

184. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
185. Government Defendants had a Constitutional duty to Windsor.  Government Defendants breached their Constitutional duties to Windsor through action and inaction.  The action and inaction of Government Defendants in violating Windsor’s Constitutional rights under color of law caused damage to Windsor.
TWELFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Violation of Constitutional Rights – Fourteenth Amendment

186. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
187. Judge Evans had a Constitutional duty to Windsor.  Judge Evans breached her Constitutional duties to Windsor through action and inaction. The action and inaction of Judge Evans in violating Windsor’s Constitutional rights under color of law caused damage to Windsor.
THIRTEENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Judicial Misconduct
188. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
189. There does not appear to be a statute that specifically authorizes a civil action for professional or judicial misconduct.  Windsor filed a judicial misconduct complaint with the Judicial Council of the Eleventh Circuit, and it was rejected despite absolute proof of many violations by Judge Evans.  The federal judges in Atlanta, Georgia cover up for one another.  The system does not work.
190. The conduct of Judge Evans and Judge Duffey constitute significant judicial misconduct.  Professional and judicial misconduct are central to MIST-1, the Deposition Action, and MIST-2.  Windsor submits that O.C.G.A. 51-1-6 should provide the legal basis for Windsor to present a cause of action for Breach of Legal Duty due to Judicial Misconduct.  Windsor and Alcatraz had a right to expect Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, and the judges of the Eleventh Circuit to abide by the Code of Judicial Conduct, the GRPC, the FRCP, and the N.D.Ga. Local Rules.  Windsor and Alcatraz had a right to expect Judge Evans and Judge Duffey to refrain from doing acts that wrongfully injured Windsor and Alcatraz.  Judge Evans and Judge Duffey committed judicial misconduct and violated the Code of Judicial Conduct, GRPC, FRCP, and the N.D. Ga. Local Rules.  Judge Evans and Judge Duffey committed acts that injured Windsor and Alcatraz.

FOURTEENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Conspiracy to Violate Windsor’s Constitutional Rights

191. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
192. Judge Orinda D. Evans, Judge William S. Duffey, Jr., Judge Julie E. Carnes, Judge Joel F. Dubina, Administrative Offices of the United States Courts, United States of America, United States Department of Justice, Eric H. Holder, Sally Quillian Yates, Gentry Shelnutt, Committee on the Judiciary of the U.S. House of Representatives, Congressman John Conyers, United States Senate Committee on the Judiciary, Senator Patrick J. Leahy, United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, United States Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit, Judicial Council of the Eleventh Circuit, Judicial Conference of the United States, Sigmund R. Adams, Federal Bureau of Investigation, Special
Agent Gregory Jones, and Does 1 TO 1000 have participated in a conspiracy to violate Windsor’s Constitutional rights.
FIFTEENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1981 - Denial of Equal Rights under the Law
193. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
194. By reason of the aforementioned acts and omissions and policies, practices, customs, or laws, engaged in under the color of state and/or federal law or authority, Government Defendants have conspired to damage Windsor.  Judge Evans issued an injunction denying Windsor’s access to the courts in the state of Georgia.  Judge Evans denied Windsor the rights he was owed under O.C.G.A. 43-4B.
SIXTEENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Violation of Pro Se Rights

195. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
196. Pro se parties are a minority class of people.  Windsor objects to the treatment of pro se parties in the N.D.Ga. and the Eleventh Circuit.  Pro se litigants are not only denied impartial judges, they are denied any judges at all.  In the N.D.Ga. and the Eleventh Circuit, pro se Windsor has been repeatedly denied rights and abused.  Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, Judge Carnes, Judge Dubina, and the Eleventh Circuit have violated the Constitutional rights of Windsor and other pro se parties. 

SEVENTEENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Violation of 42 U.S.C. Section 1985 (2) - Obstruction of Justice
197. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
198. By reason of the aforementioned acts and omissions and policies, practices, customs, or laws, engaged in under the color of state and/or federal law or authority, Judge Evans and Judge Duffey have conspired to unconstitutionally obstruct justice with Windsor.  Upon information and belied, Judge Carnes and Judge Dubina have as well. 
EIGHTEENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Violation of 42 U.S.C. Section 1985 (3)  - Conspiracy to Interfere with Civil Rights
199. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
200. By reason of the aforementioned acts and omissions and policies, practices, customs, or laws, engaged in under the color of state and/or federal law or authority, Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, and Government Defendants have conspired to interfere with Windsor’s civil rights.
NINETEENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1986 - Action for Neglect to Prevent Wrongs
201. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
202. All Government Defendants are guilty of neglect to prevent wrongs.

TWENTIETH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Violation of 42 U.S.C. Section 1983 - Violation of 18 U.S.C.  § 371 Conspiracy to commit offense or to defraud United States
203. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
204. Judge Evans and Judge Duffey have conspired to commit offense or to defraud the United States.
TWENTY-FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Intentional Common Law Torts
205. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
206. Judge Orinda D. Evans, Judge William S. Duffey, Jr., MOTM, Steamboat, H&P, and Mr. Anderson intentionally perpetrated torts and other wrongful acts against Windsor.  All Government Defendants aided and abetted such wrongful acts, knowingly inflicting great harm upon Windsor.
207. Judge Orinda D. Evans, Judge William S. Duffey, Jr., MOTM, Steamboat, H&P, and Mr. Anderson are guilty of perpetrating torts and other wrongful acts.  Government Defendants aided and abetted such wrongful acts and thus acted outside the limits of their statutory authority.
TWENTY-SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Fraud
208. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
209. All defendants engaged in a pattern of fraud against Windsor, and entered a conspiracy to do so, which inflicted great and irreparable harm upon Windsor.
210. Fraud has been addressed in other sections of the Causes of Action, and that information is referenced and incorporated herein.
TWENTY-THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Interfering With Right To Petition Government
211. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
212. Judge Evans and Judge Duffey violated Windsor’s first amendment right to petition government, as Windsor sought to report the criminal activities to government officials and agencies and pursue legal actions.  Judge Evans issued an illegal injunction, and Judge Duffey placed unfair restrictions on filing.
TWENTY-FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Negligent Interference with Prospective Economic Advantage
213. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
214. All Defendants negligently interfered with Windsor’s prospective economic advantage.
TWENTY-FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Intentional Infliction of Emotional Distress
215. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
216. Judge Evans and Judge Duffey have shown extreme and outrageous conduct.  Maid and Maid’s Attorneys have shown extreme and outrageous conduct.  Windsor has been under extreme emotional distress for four years.  All Defendants intentionally inflicted emotional distress on Windsor through fraud, conspiracy, and violation of civil and Constitutional rights, and failure to act.
TWENTY-SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Negligent Infliction of Emotional Distress
217. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
218. As a result of the above acts, Windsor suffered negligent infliction of emotional distress during the time frame covered by this Verified Complaint.  All Defendants have negligently inflicted emotional distress on Windsor.
TWENTY-SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Violation of Constitutional Due Process
219. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
220. All defendants knowingly and repeatedly violated plaintiffs’ right to procedural and substantive due process.
TWENTY-EIGHTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Abuse Of Process

221. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
222. Common law abuse of process is the use of the legal system for the improper and ulterior motive of halting Windsor’s efforts to report and obtain action on corrupt and criminal acts, with the knowledge that important interests of every U.S. citizen would be adversely affected.  The legal and judicial systems have been grossly abused to damage Windsor and shield Judge Evans from conviction and disbarment.  There has been a perversion of the process.  Windsor has been so abused that he has had to spend a fortune and devote most of his time in seeking justice,
TWENTY-NINTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Conspiracy pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1985
223. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
224. All Defendants engaged in a conspiracy with each other and people unknown to inflict harm upon Windsor, to interfere with the exposure of corrupt and criminal activities, and to interfere with his lawful efforts as a pro se litigant.
THIRTIETH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Conspiracy to Commit Fraud
225. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
226. Judge Evans and Judge Duffey formed a civil conspiracy to protect Judge Evans.  Windsor was damaged as a result.  Judge Evans and Judge Duffey did this to damage Windsor and shield Judge Evans from criminal prosecution and disbarment.  Judge Evans and Judge Duffey made intentionally false representations of facts in orders.  They did this to deceive.  The Eleventh Circuit relied upon this to Windsor’s detriment.  Other Government Defendants committed fraud by their silence.
NEW LAW

227. Windsor must also argue for extending, modifying, or reversing existing law or for establishing new law.  The whole idea of justice requires a fair trial with an impartial judge.  When the judge is so obviously biased that the judge ignores the facts and the law, invents facts that do not exist in the record, completely ignores charges of hundreds of counts of perjury, ignores the laws regarding summary judgments, consistently violates its own rulings to favor of Maid, has extensive ex parte dealings with Maid’ attorneys, and does the many other things that Judge Evans has done, it really shouldn’t matter where the bias comes from.  In a case such as this, it was absolutely impossible for A&W to have a fair trial.  

228. No judge should be allowed to brand a party as “scurrilous and irresponsible” or use such other hateful words and then pretend to be impartial

FIRST PREDICATE ACTS 

Perjury – Violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1621 

229. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
230. 18 U.S.C. § 1621 is a predicate act for Federal RICO claims.
231. Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, MOTM, Steamboat, H&P, and Mr. Anderson are guilty of Perjury in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1621.  

232. Judge Evans’ and Judge Duffey’s actions are criminal, and thus are non-judicial.  Judge Evans and Judge Duffey do not have immunity for non-judicial acts. (Shore v. Howard, 414 F.Supp 379.)
233. Proof of these false statements is detailed herein and in the Verified Action in MIST-2 and in Dec #25 – MIST-1 Doc. 462 and in the Verified Complaint above.  
234. Respondeat superior (principal is liable for agents’ misconduct: knowledge of, participation in, and benefit from a RICO enterprise).  Windsor was damaged as a result.
SECOND PREDICATE ACTS 

Perjury – Violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1623
235. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
236. 18 U.S.C. § 1623 is a predicate act for Federal RICO claims.
237. Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, MOTM, Steamboat, H&P, and Mr. Anderson are guilty of Perjury in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1623.  

238. Respondeat superior (principal is liable for agents’ misconduct: knowledge of, participation in, and benefit from a RICO enterprise).  Windsor was damaged as a result.
THIRD PREDICATE ACTS
Obstruction of Justice -- Conspiracy to Defraud United States – 18 U.S.C. § 371
239. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
240. 18 USC § 371 is a predicate act for RICO claims.
241. All of the Defendants were part of a conspiracy to defraud the United States.  Judge Orinda D. Evans, Judge William S. Duffey, Jr., Judge Julie E. Carnes, Judge Joel F. Dubina, Administrative Offices of the United States Courts, United States of America, United States Department of Justice, Eric H. Holder, Sally Quillian Yates, Gentry Shelnutt, Committee on the Judiciary of the U.S. House of Representatives, Congressman John Conyers, United States Senate Committee on the Judiciary, Senator Patrick J. Leahy, United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, United States Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit, Judicial Council of the Eleventh Circuit, Judicial Conference of the United States, Sigmund R. Adams, Federal Bureau of Investigation, Special Agent Gregory Jones, Maid of the Mist Corporation, Maid of the Mist Steamboat Company Ltd., Carl Hugo Anderson, Jr, Hawkins & Parnell, and Does 1 TO 1000 are all guilty of conspiracy.  Defendants agreed to take various actions to obstruct justice with the federal courts.

242. Judge Evans' and Judge Duffey’s actions are criminal, and thus are non-judicial.  Judge Evans and Judge Duffey do not have immunity for non-judicial acts. (Shore v. Howard, 414 F.Supp 379.)
243. Defendants performed acts and/or made statements that they knew to be false, fraudulent, and/or deceitful in courts, which disrupted the functions of the courts.  Defendants obstructed legitimate government functions.  Defendants knew statements were false or fraudulent when made.  Several of the conspirators committed overt acts of obstruction of justice.  The overt acts were knowingly committed to carry out the object of the conspiracy or were carried out by failing to take action to stop it.

244. Defendants violated 18 USC § 371.  Respondeat superior (principal is liable for agents’ misconduct: knowledge of, participation in, and benefit from a RICO enterprise).  Windsor was damaged as a result.
FOURTH PREDICATE ACTS
Obstruction of Justice and Witness Tampering -- 18 U.S.C. § 1503
245. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
246. 18 U.S.C. § 1503 is a predicate act for RICO.
247. Judge Evans corruptly endeavored to influence, obstruct, or impede the due administration of justice in MIST-1.  Judge Evans acted wrongfully.  Judge Evans’ acts were done with the intent to influence, obstruct, or impede the due administration of justice, and the conduct of Judge Evans was intended to damage Windsor and Alcatraz.  Judge Evans knew that her actions would affect the judicial proceeding.

248. Judge Evans' actions are criminal, and thus are non-judicial.  Judge Evans does not have immunity for non-judicial acts.
249. Judge Evans has violated 18 U.S.C. § 1503.  Respondeat superior (principal is liable for agents’ misconduct: knowledge of, participation in, and benefit from a RICO enterprise).  Windsor was damaged as a result.

FIFTH PREDICATE ACTS
Obstruction of Justice -- Conspiracy to Defraud United States – 18 U.S.C. § 371
False Unsworn Statements – Violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1746 

250. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full. 

251. Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, H&P, and Mr. Anderson made false “unsworn” statements.

252. Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, H&P, and Mr. Anderson have violated 18 U.S.C. 1746.  Respondeat superior (principal is liable for agents’ misconduct: knowledge of, participation in, and benefit from a RICO enterprise).  The Plaintiff was damaged as a result.
SIXTH PREDICATE ACTS 

False Swearing – Making False Statements – Violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1001
253. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
254. 18 U.S.C. § 1001 is a predicate act for RICO claims.
255. Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, MOTM, Steamboat, H&P, and Mr. Anderson have falsified, concealed and/or covered up material facts by trick, scheme and/or device.  Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, MOTM, Steamboat, H&P, and Mr. Anderson have made false, fictitious and/or fraudulent statements or representations.  Statements made were both written and oral.  Maid’s Attorneys are guilty of Making False Statements.  MOTM and Steamboat are guilty of Making False Statements.  Mr. Anderson is guilty of Making False Statements.  Judge Evans is guilty of Making False Statements.  Judge Duffey is guilty of Making False Statements.  MOTM, Steamboat, H&P, and Mr. Anderson have each falsified, concealed, or covered up a material fact by tricks, schemes, or devices; made false, fictitious or fraudulent statements or representations; and made or used false documents or writings.  Facts that have been falsified, concealed, or covered up were material, made knowingly and willfully, and made in relation to matters in the NDGa, WDNY, or the Eleventh Circuit Court of Appeals.  False, fictitious, or fraudulent statements made were material, made knowingly and willfully, and made in relation to matters in the N.D.Ga, W.D.N.Y., or the Eleventh Circuit Court of Appeals.  False documents or writing used by MOTM, Steamboat, H&P, and Mr. Anderson were false, material, made knowingly and willfully, and made in relation to matters in the N.D.Ga., W.D.N.Y., or the Eleventh Circuit Court of Appeals.  Statements were made with reckless disregard of the truthfulness of the statements or with a conscious purpose to avoid learning the truthfulness of the statements.

256. Each violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 is a separate violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1001.  Windsor has not yet attempted to count these, but the number is significant.  Respondeat superior (principal is liable for agents’ misconduct: knowledge of, participation in, and benefit from a RICO enterprise).  The Plaintiff was damaged as a result.

SEVENTH PREDICATE ACTS 

Subornation of Perjury – Violation of 18 USC § 1001
257. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full. 

258. Subornation of perjury is a predicate act for Federal RICO under 18 USC § 1001.
259. MOTM, Steamboat, H&P, Mr. Anderson, Judge Evans, and Judge Duffey committed perjury.  MOTM, Steamboat, H&P, Mr. Anderson, Judge Evans, and Judge Duffey and unknown Does procured the perjury corruptly.  MOTM, Steamboat, H&P, Mr. Anderson, Judge Evans, and Judge Duffey and unknown Does knew, believed, or had reason to believe it to be false testimony.  MOTM, Steamboat, H&P, Mr. Anderson, Judge Evans, and Judge Duffey and unknown Does knew, believed, or had reason to believe that the perjurer had knowledge of the falsity of his or her testimony.  MOTM, Steamboat, H&P, Mr. Anderson, Judge Evans, and Judge Duffey and unknown Does are guilty of Subornation of Perjury.  The testimony given was false.  At the time the witnesses testified, the witnesses knew the testimony was false.  The witnesses gave such testimony voluntarily and intentionally.  The false testimony was material.  Judge Evans and Judge Duffey made statements voluntarily and intentionally.  The false statements were material.  Certain defendants participated in a conspiracy to suborn perjury. 

260. These defendants have violated 18 USC § 1001.  Respondeat superior (principal is liable for agents’ misconduct: knowledge of, participation in, and benefit from a RICO enterprise).  Windsor was damaged as a result.

EIGHTH PREDICATE ACTS 

Subornation of Perjury – Violation of 18 USC § 1503
261. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full. 

262. Subornation of perjury is a predicate act for federal RICO under 18 USC § 1503.
263. The allegations in paragraph 301 above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.  
264. Certain defendants participated in a conspiracy to suborn perjury.These defendants have violated 18 U.S.C. § 1503.  Respondeat superior (principal is liable for agents’ misconduct: knowledge of, participation in, and benefit from a RICO enterprise).  Windsor was damaged as a result.

NINTH PREDICATE ACTS 

Subornation of Perjury – Violation of 18 USC § 1621
265. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full. 

266. Subornation of perjury is a predicate act for Federal RICO under 18 USC § 1621.
267. The allegations in paragraph 301 above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
268. These defendants have violated 18 U.S.C. § 1621.  Respondeat superior (principal is liable for agents’ misconduct: knowledge of, participation in, and benefit from a RICO enterprise).  The Plaintiff was damaged as a result.

TENTH PREDICATE ACTS 

Subornation of Perjury – Violation of 18 USC § 1623
269. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full. 

270. Subornation of perjury is a predicate act for Federal RICO under 18 USC § 1623.
271. The allegations in paragraph 301 above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
272. These defendants have violated 18 USC § 1623.  Respondeat superior (principal is liable for agents’ misconduct: knowledge of, participation in, and benefit from a RICO enterprise).  The Plaintiff was damaged as a result.

ELEVENTH PREDICATE ACTS 

Conspiracy to Suborn Perjury – Violation of 18 USC § 1622
273. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full. 

274. Subornation of perjury is a predicate act for Federal RICO under 18 USC § 1622.
275. The allegations in paragraph 301 above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.  

276.  These defendants have violated 18 U.S.C. § 1622.  Respondeat superior (principal is liable for agents’ misconduct: knowledge of, participation in, and benefit from a RICO enterprise).  The Plaintiff was damaged as a result.

TWELFTH PREDICATE ACTS
Misprision of a Felony
277. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
278. All of the Defendants except the Administrative Offices of the United States Courts and the Judicial Conference of the United States had knowledge of felonies.  They did not report the felonies or take action on the felonies.  This makes them guilty of Misprision of Felonies.  This Court should refer this matter to the appropriate authorities for action.
THIRteenth predicate acts

Treason to the Constitution
279. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through ___ above are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.
280. When a judge does not comply with the law, he/she is not acting as a judge under the law. He/she does not hold any office because he/she has failed to meet the federal statutory prerequisites that would support the Constitutional mandate that all judges shall be bound thereby pursuant to Article VI of the Constitution of the United States:  "This Constitution and the Laws of the United States which shall be made in Pursuance thereof, and all Treaties made, or which shall be made, under the Authority of the United States shall be the supreme Law of the Land, and the judges in every State shall be bound thereby, any Thing in the Constitution or Laws of any State to the Contrary notwithstanding." 
281. Where acts of violations of the U.S. Constitution, Amendment XIV, Section 3, and constitutes the aiding and abetting the enemies of the U.S. Constitution and the laws promulgated by the Constitution. The enemies of the Constitution are all persons who attempt to defeat any provision of the Constitution, such as the 4th, 5th, 14th Amendments, Article 1, Sec. 2 and Sec. 9 of the Constitution (direct taxation clauses). The internal enemies of the Constitution are persons who act under "color of law", while using positions of government authority, to deprive citizens of their constitutional rights and protections. The internal enemies of the Constitution are all persons who knowingly use deceit or treachery to undermine the constitutional rights and protections of citizens.  Judge Evans and Judge Duffey have committed Treason to the Constitution.
PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, there being no adequate remedy at law, Windsor prays for judgment in favor of Windsor and against Defendants as follows:


DECLARATORY RELIEF
282. Declare that all orders, injunctions, and judgments in Civil Action No. 1:06-CV-0714-ODE since February 4, 2010 are void.  Declare that all orders, injunctions, and judgments in Civil Action No. 1:09-CV-01543-WSD since February 4, 2010 are void.  Declare that all orders, injunctions, and judgments in Civil Action No. 1:09-CV-02027-WSD since February 4, 2010 are void.
INJUNCTIVE RELIEF
283. Unless Defendants are enjoined from certain acts, Windsor will continue to suffer immediate and irreparable harm.  The harm suffered by Windsor far exceeds any inconvenience that would be caused on these defendants.  Based upon the FRCP, GRPC, and the law, the equities clearly balance in Windsor’s favor.  Windsor has no adequate remedy at law.

284. Windsor is entitled to a Temporary Restraining Order, interlocutory, and permanent injunctive relief:

a. That Defendants United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia and the United States Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit are temporarily RESTRAINED and preliminarily and permanently enjoined from violating Federal Rules of Appellate procedure Rule 36 and issuing Writs of Execution without proper issuance and notice of judgments.
b. that Defendant Judge William S. Duffey is temporarily RESTRAINED and preliminarily and permanently enjoined from acting in Civil Action 1:09-CV-01543-WSD in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, pending further order of the Court; 
c. that Defendant Judge William S. Duffey is hereby temporarily RESTRAINED and preliminarily and permanently enjoined from issuing any future orders, judgments, or decrees in Civil Action 1:09-CV-01543-WSD in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, pending further order of the Court; 
d. that Defendant Judge William S. Duffey is hereby temporarily RESTRAINED and preliminarily and permanently enjoined from prohibiting any access to the courts by William M. Windsor or anyone working with him or on his behalf and is RESTRAINED from enforcing the injunction issued on December 22, 2009 in Civil Action 1:09-CV-01543-WSD in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, pending further order of the Court; 
e. that Defendant Judge William S. Duffey is temporarily RESTRAINED and preliminarily and permanently enjoined from acting in Civil Action 1:09-CV-02027-WSD in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, pending further order of the Court; 
f. that Defendant Judge William S. Duffey is hereby temporarily RESTRAINED and preliminarily and permanently enjoined from issuing any future orders, judgments, or decrees in Civil Action 1:09-CV-02027-WSD in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, pending further order of the Court; 
g. that Defendant Judge William S. Duffey is hereby temporarily RESTRAINED and preliminarily and permanently enjoined from prohibiting any access to the courts by William M. Windsor or anyone working with him or on his behalf and is RESTRAINED from enforcing the injunction issued on December 22, 2009 in Civil Action 1:09-CV-02027-WSD in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, pending further order of the Court; 
h. that Defendant Judge Orinda D. Evans by temporarily RESTRAINED and preliminarily and permanently enjoined from acting in Civil Action 1:06-CV-0714-ODE in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, pending further order of the Court; 
i. that Defendant Judge Orinda D. Evans is hereby temporarily RESTRAINED and preliminarily and permanently enjoined from issuing any future orders, judgments, or decrees in Civil Action 1:06-CV-0714-ODE in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, pending further order of the Court; 
j. that Defendant Judge Orinda D. Evans is hereby temporarily RESTRAINED and preliminarily and permanently enjoined from prohibiting any access to the courts by William M. Windsor or anyone working with him or on his behalf and is RESTRAINED from enforcing the injunction issued on December 22, 2009 in Civil Action 1:06-CV-0714-ODE in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, pending further order of the Court; 
k. that Defendant Judge Orinda D. Evans is hereby COMPELLED to lift the seal on the contents of Docket 168 in Civil Action 1:06-CV-0714-ODE in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia and allow Windsor to obtain a copy; 
l. that all Defendants are hereby temporarily RESTRAINED and preliminarily and permanently enjoined from destroying any evidence or erasing or modifying any information on any computers relevant in any way to the Plaintiff, Alcatraz Media, LLC, Alcatraz Media, Inc., or any of the Defendants related to Civil Action No. 1:06-CV-0714-ODE (MIST-1), Civil Action No. 1:09-CV-01453-WSD, or Civil Action No. 1:09-CV-02027-WSD in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, pending further order of the Court;
m. that all Defendants and all their directors, officers, employees, agents, servants and all other persons in active concert or in participation with them, be enjoined temporarily during pendency of this action, and permanently thereafter, from acquiring or maintaining, whether directly or indirectly, any interest in or control of any RICO enterprise of persons, or of other individuals associated in fact, who are engaged in, or whose activities do affect, interstate or foreign commerce;
n. that all Defendants and all of their directors, officers, employees, agents, servants and all other persons in active concert or in participation with them, be enjoined temporarily during pendency of this action, and permanently thereafter, from committing any more predicate acts in furtherance of the RICO enterprise as alleged’
o. that all Defendants and all their directors, officers, employees, agents, servants and all other persons in active concert or in participation with them, be enjoined temporarily during pendency of this action, and permanently thereafter, from conspiring to acquire or maintain an interest in, or control of, any RICO enterprise that engages in a pattern of racketeering activity in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1961(5), 1962(C) and (d) supra;
p. that all Defendants and all their directors, officers, employees, agents, servants and all other persons in active concert or in participation with them, be enjoined temporarily during pendency of this action, and permanently thereafter, from conspiring to conduct, participate in, or benefit in any manner from any RICO enterprise through a pattern of racketeering activity in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1961(5), 1962(c) and (d) supra;
q. that all Defendants and all their directors, officers, employees, agents, servants and all other persons in active concert or in participation with them, be enjoined temporarily during pendency of this action, and permanently thereafter, from committing any more predicate acts in furtherance of the RICO enterprise as alleged.

285. Windsor is an aggrieved person within the meaning of O.C.G.A. § 16-14-6(b). As a result, Windsor is entitled to appropriate preliminary and permanent injunctive relief.
RICO RELIEF
286. Windsor asks that this Court liberally construe the RICO laws and thereby find that all Defendants, both jointly and severally, have acquired and maintained, both directly and indirectly, an interest in and/or control of a RICO enterprise of persons and of other individuals who were associated in fact, all of whom engaged in, and whose activities did affect, interstate and foreign commerce in violation of 18 U.S.C. 1962(c) (Prohibited activities); that all Defendants be required to account for all gains, profits, and advantages derived from their several acts of racketeering activity in violation of 18 U.S.C. 1962(c) and from all other violation(s) of applicable State and federal law(s); hat judgment be entered for Windsor and against all Defendants for Windsor’s actual damages, and for any gains, profits, or advantages attributable to all violations of 18 U.S.C. 1962(c), according to the best available proof; that all Defendants pay to Windsor treble (triple) damages, under authority of 18 U.S.C. 1964(c), for any gains, profits, or advantages attributable to all violations of 18 U.S.C. 1962(c), according to the best available proof; that all Defendants pay to Windsor all damages sustained by Windsor in consequence of Defendants’ several violations of 18 U.S.C. 1962(c), according to the best available proof; that all Defendants pay to Windsor his costs of the lawsuit incurred herein including, but not limited to, all necessary research, all non‑judicial enforcement and all reasonable counsel’s fees; that all damages caused by all Defendants, and all gains, profits, and advantages derived by all Defendants, from their several acts of racketeering in violation of 18 U.S.C. 1962(c) and from all other violation(s) of applicable State and federal law(s), be deemed to be held in constructive trust for the benefit of Plaintiff, His heirs and assigns; that Windsor have such other and further relief as this Court deems just and proper, under the circumstances of this action; that this Court liberally construe the RICO laws and thereby find that all Defendants have conspired to acquire and maintain an interest in, and/or conspired to acquire and maintain control of, a RICO enterprise engaged in a pattern of racketeering activity in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1961(5), 1962(c) and (d) supra; that this Court liberally construe the RICO laws and thereby find that all Defendants have conspired to conduct and participate in said RICO enterprise through a pattern of racketeering activity in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1961(5), 1962(c) and (d) supra; that all Defendants be required to account for all gains, profits, and advantages derived from their several acts of racketeering in violation of 18 U.S.C. 1962(d) supra and from all other violation(s) of applicable State and federal law(s); that judgment be entered for Windsor and against all Defendants for Windsor’s actual damages, and for any gains, profits, or advantages attributable to all violations of 18 U.S.C. 1962(d) supra, according to the best available proof; that all Defendants pay to Windsor treble damages, under authority of 18 U.S.C. 1964(c), for any gains, profits, or advantages attributable to all violations of 18 U.S.C. 1962(d) supra, according to the best available proof; that all Defendants pay to Windsor all damages sustained by Windsor in consequence of Defendants’ several violations of 18 U.S.C. 1962(d) supra, according to the best available proof; that all Defendants pay to Windsor his costs of the lawsuit incurred herein including, but not limited to, all necessary research, all non‑judicial enforcement, and all reasonable counsel’s fees; that all damages caused by all Defendants, and all gains, profits, and advantages derived by all Defendants, from their several acts of racketeering in violation of 18 U.S.C. 1962(d) supra and from all other violation(s) of applicable State and federal law(s), be deemed to be held in constructive trust for the benefit of Plaintiff, his heirs and assigns.

COMPENSATORY DAMAGES
287. Windsor should recover actual damages from Defendants, the amount of which is still accruing.  In this case, the judges have committed criminal offenses.  Windsor has read some cases that indicate that a judge cannot be sued for monetary damages.  If this is currently considered “the law,” Windsor asks this Court to consider modifying the law in this regard to allow monetary damages against Judge Evans and Judge Duffey under these circumstances.  Let the jury decide.

PUNITIVE DAMAGES
288. Defendants’ conduct as described above is willful, wanton, wicked, intentional, and malicious resulting from fraud, insult, and malice, and it is associated with aggravating circumstances, including willfulness, wantonness, malice, oppression, outrageous conduct, insult, and fraud, thus warranting Windsor’s recovery of punitive damages from Defendants, to be determined by the trier of fact.  O.C.G.A. 51-12-5.1 authorizes punitive damages.  Windsor should receive an award of punitive damages.
EXPENSES OF LITIGATION
289. Defendants have acted in bad faith, have been stubbornly litigious, and have caused Windsor unnecessary trouble and expense, justifying an award of expenses of litigation from Defendants, in an amount to be proven at trial.  Accordingly, Windsor is entitled to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of litigation pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 13-6-11.  Windsor is also entitled to an award of attorneys’ fees pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 1983.  Windsor is also entitled to an award of attorneys’ fees pursuant to RICO claims.  Since punitive damages are appropriate, counsel fees, paralegal fees, deposition costs, and litigation fees can be taken into consideration when estimating the foregoing punitive damages.

ORDER AND JUDGMENT

290. The Order and Judgment entered by this Court should include the following:
a. Issuing a ruling that Defendants perpetrated a fraud upon the federal courts in MIST-1; 

b. Issuing a ruling that Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, and Judge Birch appear to have committed perjury; 
c. Issuing appropriate orders and judgments prohibiting Defendants from engaging in the violations of law alleged herein, pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 16-14-4(a);

d. Issuing a Judgment in an amount equal to three times the actual damages sustained, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1964(c) or Judgment in an amount equal to three times the actual damages sustained, pursuant to O.C.G.A.16-14-6(c) from Defendants other than Judge Evans;

e. Issuing a Judgment in an amount to be proven at trial that requires Defendants to disgorge any unlawful profits or otherwise return the full amount of its unjust enrichment;

f. Awarding Windsor damages as aforesaid, including interest at a market rate;
g. Issuing a Judgment to include Punitive damages from Defendants;

h. Ordering Defendants to pay Attorneys’ fees and litigation expense, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1964(c) and/or O.C.G.A. 16-14-6(c), and/or O.C.G.A. 13-6-11 and/or the Court’s Inherent Powers;
i. Entering declaratory judgments, and for an independent action in equity to remedy a final judgment that was obtained by Defendants through fraud upon the courts, declaring that:

i. Defendants committed fraud upon the courts, and the judgments and orders obtained by fraud upon the courts are void;

ii. Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, and Judge Birch were acting improperly;

iii. The actions of Defendants constituted a fraudulent conspiracy, and the judgments obtained through fraudulent conspiracy are void;

iv. Judge Evans and Judge Duffey exceeded their jurisdiction, had a reckless disregard for jurisdiction and/or acted in the absence of all jurisdiction, and judgments obtained through excess of jurisdiction, reckless disregard for jurisdiction, or the absence of all jurisdiction are void;

v. Windsor was denied a trial on the facts, and his right to be heard through the fraudulent conduct of Defendants;

vi. The concerted conduct of Defendants constitutes fraud, fraudulent conspiracy, and intentional or negligent infliction of emotional distress, under the laws of Georgia;

vii. The actions of all Defendants should be referred to the U.S. Attorney with recommendation that a Grand Jury be convened.  Recommendation should be made that criminal charges are pursued.

j. Issuing an order providing immediate injunctive relief; and
k. Granting such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.
This 23rd day of September, 2010.

_______________________________ 
WILLIAM M. WINDSOR
Pro Se







PO Box 681236






Marietta, GA 30068







Telephone: 770-578-1094

Facsimile: 770-578-1057

Email: bill@billwindsor.com


DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Windsor hereby demands a trial by jury.

This 23rd day of September, 2010.
_______________________________ 
WILLIAM M. WINDSOR

Pro Se







PO Box 681236






Marietta, GA 30068







Telephone: 770-578-1094

Facsimile: 770-578-1057

Email: bill@billwindsor.com


VERIFICATION OF WILLIAM M. WINDSOR


Personally appeared before me, the undersigned Notary Public duly authorized to administer oaths, William M. Windsor, who after being duly sworn deposes and states that he is authorized to make this verification on behalf of himself and that the facts alleged in paragraphs 1 to ____ in the foregoing VERIFIED COMPLAINT are true and correct based upon his personal knowledge, except as to the matters herein stated to be alleged on information and belief, and that as to those matters he believes them to be true. 
FURTHER SAITH AFFIANT NOT.

 
In accordance with 28 U.S.C. § 1746, I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct based upon my personal knowledge.

This 23rd day of September, 2010.






___________________________








William M. Windsor

Sworn and subscribed before me this 23rd day of September, 2010.

____________________________

Notary Public
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